
 

 

 Traverse City Downtown 
Development Authority Regular 

Meeting 
Friday, October 18, 2024 

9:00 am 
Commission Chambers, Governmental Center 

400 Boardman Avenue 
Traverse City, Michigan 49684 

  

 
  
  
  
  

 
The City of Traverse City does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the 
admission to, access to, treatment in, or employment in, its programs or activities.  
Interim Assistant City Manager, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse City, Michigan 49684, 
phone 231-922-4440, TDD/TTY 231-922-4412, VRS 231-421-7008, has been 
designated to coordinate compliance with the non-discrimination requirements 
contained in Section 35.107 of the Department of Justice regulations.  Information 
concerning the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and the rights provided 
thereunder, are available from the ADA Coordinator. 
 
If you are planning to attend and you have a disability requiring any special assistance 
at the meeting and/or if you have any concerns, please immediately notify the ADA 
Coordinator. 
  
The City of Traverse City and Downtown Development Authority are committed to a 
dialog that is constructive, respectful and civil. We ask that all individuals interacting 
verbally or in writing with board members honor these values.   
  

Downtown Development Authority:     
c/o Harry Burkholder, Interim CEO 
(231) 922-2050 
Web:  www.dda.downtowntc.com  
303 East State Street, Suite C 
Traverse City, MI  49684 

  
   
  

Page 1 of 52



 
Follow us on Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram - CityofTC - www.traversecitymi.gov 

 

 
Welcome to the Traverse City Downtown Development Authority 

meeting 
 

Agenda 
  

Page  
1. CALL TO ORDER    
2. 

 
ROLL CALL  

  
3. 

 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

  
4. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  

  
5. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping 
non-controversial items together to be dealt with by one DDA Board motion 
without discussion. Any member of the DDA Board, staff or the public may 
ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and 
placed elsewhere on the agenda for individual consideration by the DDA 
Board; and such requests will be automatically respected.  If an item is not 
removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the 
agenda is approved by a single DDA Board action adopting the consent 
calendar. 

 

 
 A. Consideration of approving the minutes from the September 20, 2024 

DDA Regular Board Meeting (approval recommended)   
September 20, 2024 DDA Board Meeting Minutes - PDF 

4 - 
11 

 
 B. Consideration of approving the September Financial Reports and 

Disbursements for DDA General, Old Town tIF, TIF-97 and the Arts 
Commission (approval recommended)   
DDA, Old Town TIF, TIF-97 Financial Report and Dashboard - PDF 

12 - 
19 

 
 C. Consideration of approving the minutes from the September 30, 2024 

DDA Governance Committee Meeting (approval recommended)   
September 30, 2024 Governance Committee Meeting Minutes - PDF 

20 - 
21 

  
6. 

 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR  

  
7. 

 
SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS  

  
8. 

 
OLD BUSINESS  

 
 A. Downtown Restaurant Composting Program Update  22 - 

Page 2 of 52



 
Follow us on Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram - CityofTC - www.traversecitymi.gov 

 

Downtown Resturant Composting Program Memo )Burkholder) - 
PDF 

23 

 
 B. West Front Street Bridge Staircase Budget Amendment (approval 

recommended)   
West Front Street Bridge Staircase Memo (Burkholder) - PDF 
Staircase Plan Set - PDF 

24 - 
36 

  
9. 

 
NEW BUSINESS  

 
 A. TIF-97 Budget Priorities (approval recommended)  

TIF-97 Budget Priorities Memo (Burkholder) - PDF 
37 - 

41 
 
 B. J-Smith Walkway (approval recommended)   

Downtown Improvements - J-Smith Walkway Memo (Burkholder) - 
PDF 

42 

  
10. 

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  

 
 A. Executive Director Report   

Executive Director Report Memo (Burkholder) - PDF 
43 - 

44 
  
11. 

 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS  

 
 A. Arts Commission Report   

Art Commission Report Memo (McMillen) - PDF 
45 

  
12. 

 
STAFF REPORTS  

 
 A. Director of Events and Engagement Report   

Director of Events and Engagement Report (Klebba) - PDF 
46 - 

47 
  
13. 

 
RECEIVE AND FILE  

 
 A. Correspondence from the Parking and Mobility Director   

Notice of Parking Permit Rate Increases (VanNess) - PDF 
48 - 

50 
 
 B. August 8, 2024 DTCA Meeting Minutes   

August 8, 2024 DTCA Meeting Minutes - PDF 
51 - 

52 
  
14. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  

  
15. 

 
ADJOURNMENT  

 

Page 3 of 52



 

 
Minutes of the 

Downtown Development Authority for the City of Traverse City 
Regular Meeting 

Friday, September 20, 2024  
 
          A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Traverse City was 
called to order at the Commission Chambers, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman Avenue, 
Traverse City, Michigan, at 9:00 a.m. 
  
          The following Board Members were in attendance: Board Member Peter Kirkwood, Board 
Vice Chair Scott Hardy, Board Member Jeff Joubran, Board Member Todd McMillen, Board 
Member Ed Slosky, Board Member Hillary Ascroft, Mayor Amy Shamroe, Board Member Shelley 
Spencer, Board Member Gary Howe, and Board Member Mike Powers  
  
          The following Board Members were absent:   None 
  
          Vice Chair Hardy presided at the meeting. 
  
 
(a) CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Vice Chair Scott Hardy at 9:00am. 
 
(b) ROLL CALL 
 
(c) ELECTION OF OFFICERS  
 (1) Election of Officers (approval recommended)  

 
Meeting was turned over to Harry Burkholder, Executive Director, to call for 
nominations for Chair of the DDA Board of Directors. 
  
            
That the DDA Board elect Scott Hardy as Chair. 
 
Moved by Jeff Joubran, Seconded by Amy Shamroe 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Page 1 of 8

Page 4 of 52



 
Absent: None 

CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote 
That the DDA Board appoint Ed Slosky as Vice Chair. 
 
Moved by Amy Shamroe, Seconded by Mike Powers 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Jeff Joubran, Ed Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy 

Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, and Mike Powers 
No: Scott Hardy, Todd McMillen, and Gary Howe 
Absent: None 

CARRIED. 7-3-0 on a recorded vote 
That the DDA Board appoint Jeff Joubran as Treasurer. 
 
Moved by Amy Shamroe, Seconded by Todd McMillen 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote 

That the DDA Board appoint Shelley Spencer as Secretary. 
 
Moved by Gary Howe, Seconded by Amy Shamroe 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote   

 (2) Committee Appointments 
  
That the DDA Board cease regular study sessions but reserve the right to host on 
an as needed. 
 
Moved by Amy Shamroe, Seconded by Scott Hardy 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote 

  
  
That the DDA Board appoint of Todd McMillen as Chair with Peter Kirkwood, Hillary 
Ashcroft and Amy Shamroe as members to the Governance Committee: 

Page 2 of 8

Page 5 of 52



 
  
 
Moved by Scott Hardy, Seconded by Gary Howe 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote 

That the DDA Board appoint Jeff Joubran as Chair with Gary Howe, Shelley 
Spencer, Mike Powers as members to the Finance Commitee 
 
Moved by Scott Hardy, Seconded by Ed Slosky 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote   

 (3) That the DDA Board appoint Mike Powers to the Farmers Market Advisory Board. 
 
Moved by Amy Shamroe, Seconded by Gary Howe 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote   

 (4) That the DDA Board appoint Todd McMillen to the Art Commission 
 
Moved by Ed Slosky, Seconded by Gary Howe 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote   

 (5) That the DDA Board appoint Shelley Spencer to the Rotary Square Advisory 
Committee. 
 
Moved by Amy Shamroe, Seconded by Hillary Ascroft 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 

Page 3 of 8

Page 6 of 52



 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote 

That the DDA Board approve the Agenda as presented. 
 
Moved by Ed Slosky, Seconded by Amy Shamroe 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote  

 
(d) REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 (1)  
 
(e) PUBLIC COMMENT 

n/a 
 
(f) CONSENT CALENDAR 

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping 
non-controversial items together to be dealt with by one DDA Board motion without 
discussion. Any member of the DDA Board, staff or the public may ask that any item on 
the consent calendar be removed therefrom and placed elsewhere on the agenda for 
individual consideration by the DDA Board; and such requests will be automatically 
respected.  If an item is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in 
parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single DDA Board action adopting the 
consent calendar.  

 (1) Consideration of approving the minutes from the August 16, 2024 DDA Regular 
Meeting (approval recommended)   

 (2) Consideration of approving the August Financial Reports and Disbursements for 
DDA General, Old Town TIF, TIF-97 and the Arts Commission.  
  
  
That the DDA Board approve the Consent Calendar as presented. 
 
Moved by Amy Shamroe, Seconded by Hillary Ascroft 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote  

 
(g) ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

Page 4 of 8

Page 7 of 52



 
n/a 

 
(h) OLD BUSINESS  
 (1) Two-Way Circulation Pilot Project 

 
  
The following addressed the board: 
Susan  
Peter Kirkwood 
Joe Eberle 
Scott Hardy 
Amy Shamroe 
Ed Slosky 
Gary Howe 
Mike Powers 
Todd McMillen 
Jeff Joubran 
Shelley Spencer 
  
Public Comment was called by Chair Hardy: 
The following addressed the board: 
John Willimans 
Fred Bimber 
Rick Stein 
  
  
That the DDA Board support another year study of the State Street 2-way project. 
 
Moved by Amy Shamroe, Seconded by Mike Powers 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote  

 
(i) NEW BUSINESS  
 (1) Traverse Connect Contract (approval recommended) 

 
The following addressed the board: 
Scott Hardy 
Shelley Spencer 
Warren Call 
Amy Shamroe 
Pete Kirkwood 

Page 5 of 8

Page 8 of 52



 
Jeff Joubran 
Mike Powers 
 
*Todd McMillen & Shelley Spencer left meeting at 10:35am 
 
That the DDA Board enter into a one-year contract with Traverse Connect for 
$42,000, $37,000 coming from TIF-97 and $5,000 coming from Old Town TIF, 
subject to approval as to its from and substance by the DDA Attorney. With the 
addition of the requirement of reporting quarterly to the DDA Board. 
 
Moved by Ed Slosky, Seconded by Amy Shamroe 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote   

 (2) Rehmann Contract (approval recommended) 
 
  
The following addressed the board: 
Harry Burkholder 
Scott Hardy 
Amy Shamroe 
Jeff Joubran 
  
*Jeff Joubran left meeting at 10:45am 
  
  
That the DDA Board enter into a one-year contract with Rehmann for a not-to-
exceed amount of $83,160, subject to approval as to its from and substance by the 
DDA Attorney. 
  
 
Moved by Amy Shamroe, Seconded by Jeff Joubran 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Jeff Joubran, Todd McMillen, Ed 

Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, 
and Mike Powers 

Absent: None 
CARRIED. 10-0-0 on a recorded vote   

 (3) Executive Director Job Description (approval recommended)  
  
  
That the DDA Board approve the Job Description for the DDA Executive Director 

Page 6 of 8

Page 9 of 52



 
and agrees to forward it on to the City Commission as written until such time that 
Parking Services moves to the City. 
  
 
Moved by Mike Powers, Seconded by Amy Shamroe 
 
Yes: Peter Kirkwood, Scott Hardy, Ed Slosky, Hillary Ascroft, Amy 

Shamroe, Shelley Spencer, Gary Howe, and Mike Powers 
Abstained: Jeff Joubran and Todd McMillen 
Absent: None 

CARRIED. 8-0-0 on a recorded vote   
 (4) TIF-97 Budget Priorities  

 
  
The following addressed the board: 
Harry Burkholder 
Amy Shamroe 
Scott Hardy 
Ed Slosky 
Mike Powers 
Peter Kirkwood 
  
  
*Gary Howe and Shelley Spencer left the meeting at 9:40am. 
   

 
(j) EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  
 (1)   

  
The following addressed the board: 
Harry Burkholder 
Scott Hardy 
Ed Slosky  

 
(k) BOARD MEMBER REPORTS  
 (1) Arts Commission Report  

 
n/a  

 
(l) STAFF REPORTS  
 (1) Director of Events and Outreach Report  

 
  
The following addressed the board: 

Page 7 of 8

Page 10 of 52



 
Sara Klebba 
Amy Shamroe 
   

 
(m) RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
(n) PUBLIC COMMENT 

The following addressed the board: 
Fred Bimber 
  

 
(o) ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Hardy adjourned meeting at 11:00am. 
 

Harry Burkholder, Executive Director 
 

Page 8 of 8

Page 11 of 52



����������	
�����������������������������������
�� ���!"#�$"$%

&''()*+�,*-.-��/0120-1*34�5'6780(�94�:;:<�;:=>:�?@�A@BC;<=;; ��DEF

GH�I� JKHGI�LMMM�N�OPQ��Q��R�JQ��S��T�U�VLLW XLLYWWZ[\LLMLM�N�OPQ��Q��R�]�̂��T_�U�̀ZaM WLMYb̀L[VbLMWM�c�PPd�J�_Q M[MMLMZW�����[�ef�ge��d�hiP�J������T M[MMLWMM�j��ei�P_�K����̂�k�� LLZYb\X[LWLLML�Gi��N�ef�jc]�lJ�Pd�eO��Jm M[MMLLMW�Gi��N�ef�j�P_�Jei���� M[MMLLMV�Gi��N�ef�G�Jj M[MMLLMa�Gi��N�ef�hPQ���Ni�R_ M[MMLWWM�n���P_�K����̂�k�� M[MMLWVM�hPQ���K����̂�k�� M[MMLVMM�c��Uc��R�Hop��_� WỲMX[XMLabM�c�d�e���jR̂���� M[MMLa\\�q�R�pe_�P�R�Ni�R_ M[MMWMMM�j��ei�P_�c�d�k�� LLYZZX[bMWLXV�J��R�P�J��R VYVMX[ZbWMXM�hPQ���j���i�R�r��k���P��_ M[MMWLMM�Gi��Pe�hPQ���Ni�R_ M[MMWLLM�Gi��Pe�h�RPes���IN M[MMWLWM�Gi��Pe��IN�\Z M[MMWWMM�c�d�e���r��k���P��_ M[MMWWML�c�d�e���r��k���P��_tG����P�G�pe_�P�r��k���P��_ M[MMWWMW�c�d�e���r��k���P��_tj���i�R�c�d�e���r��k���P��_ LLYMbL[a\WWMV�c�d�e���r��k���P��_tj���i�R�]������_ VZYV̀L[b\WWMX�c�d�e���r��k���P��_taXZk�c�d�k�� M[MMWWLM�c�d�e���r��k���P��_tN�R�����I��ef����o�c�d�k�� M[MMWWLX�c�d�e���r��k���P��_tu���PQY�G��P��Y�v�_�e��I�_i������c�d�k�� aLYWWV[VMWWWM�c�d�e���r��k���P��_tr�O��w�G�_�k���Pd�I�_i������c�d�k�� LYXMW[MbWWWX�c�d�e���r��k���P��_tg�R��������o�c�d�k�� M[MMWWVM�c�d�e���r��k���P��_t]e�����]��i��Pd���o�c�d�k�� M[MMWWVX�c�d�e���r��k���P��_t]P�P��I��ef����o�c�d�k�� M[MMWWaM�c�d�e���r��k���P��_t]P�P��q��fp�edf��P���o�c�d�k�� M[MMWWaX�c�d�e���r��k���P��_tx�T��n����_Qf��P�c�d�k�� M[MMWVMM�G�pe_�P_�c�d�k�� M[MMWVML�G�pe_�P_�c�d�k��tGeik���qp�NeeR��i�S_ WỲab[V\WVMV�G�pe_�P_�c�d�k��tyJN�K��fki�_�f��P_ à\[MMWVMa�G�pe_�P_�c�d�k��tc��_���pP�e�_�Oe��u���PQ LYMWX[̀aWVMX�G�pe_�P_�c�d�k��tc�ez��P�N��_Q Z̀a[MMWVM̀�G�pe_�P_�c�d�k��t]���e��c�ez��P�N��_Q LY\ba[MMWVMZ�G�pe_�P_�c�d�k��t]yjc�NeeR�j__�_P�����c�d�k�� M[MMWaML�nKjy�]tJe�_P���{e���g���T�f��P M[MMWaMW�nKjy�]tG�_P���P�e��Ges�Pes� M[MMWaMV�nKjy�]tHnrH�UU�Je��s����G�̂��epf��P M[MMWaMa�nKjy�]tu��PQd�G���S��T�Ji�Pi���n���P M[MMWaMX�nKjy�]tres����e��Rf�� M[MM
Page 12 of 52



����������	
�����������������������������������
�� ���!"#�$"$%

&''()*+�,*-.-��/0120-1*34�5'6780(�94�:;:<�;:=>:�?@�A@BC;<=;; ��:DE

FG�H� IJGFH�KLMN�OJPQ�RST�U�V�W��T����TGFI�O���U MXMMKLMY�OJPQ�RSTGFI�ZI�[���R\]���̂ _MM̀MMMXMMKLMa�OJPQ�RSb�Wc�dd�W����F�[��Wef��U MXMMKLMg�OJPQ�RSJWU��h�IV���U��d MXMMKL_M�OJPQ�RSR��i�O���U MXMMKL__�OJPQ�RS���V�H��]j�UW��k]�i MXMMKNMM�F�c����i�H��Wf� KK̀l_MXam��h���I�W]nV�T�fW�����k]�i MXMM�]feW]U�b�Wo��U�k]�id�IW����U�i MXMM�]h�pW����O�[��pW����I�fe��n� _̀NgaXmYR]de��d� MXMMmMMM�qe����n�����G\]�Uh _MỲNMNXKYmgMM�J�U����i�G�����nd LNK̀YMmXgmL_M_��PrGRSb�We��Uh���s�d _K_̀a_lXmKLK_K�OJPQ�R�t�IqQ�JH�u�HqQRSGOpG�O���UvRU�U��RU���U�w�dUvG�i�T�s�i�ud� _̀LalXMMLmMK�JGHT�uJRGTGQ�RSPif���dU��U�[��R��[���d _al̀gmKXMMLmMm�JGHT�uJRGTGQ�RSb��x��n�R��[���d _LM̀alNXmLLmMN�JGHT�uJRGTGQ�RSk��f��yd�T��x�U��WWUV�J��U���H��Wf� LM̀LmaXMMLlMM�HQ�GJGR��HQIqTG NNNXLLLlM_�HQ�GJGR��HQIqTGSH�U���dU�t�F�[�i��id _̀LamXmNl_M_�RPpPJHGRSR������d�t�w�n�d _LỲMgYXNal_MK�RPpPJHGRSzW]��h�w�n��Gse��d� _MỲMLlXallKM_�kJHQOG��GQGkH�RSz���UV�H�d]����� LK̀_YaXmLlKMK�kJHQOG��GQGkH�RSF�d�j���Uh�H�d]����������c�Ud _̀gLmX_KlKMm�kJHQOG��GQGkH�RSp�c��H�d]������Gse��d� lKgX_LlKML�kJHQOG��GQGkH�RSLlY�IWfe��h�T�U�V��n _g̀KKYXlllKMa�kJHQOG��GQGkH�RSRW�����R��]��Uh���s�Gse��d� _ǸmLKX_LlKMg�kJHQOG��GQGkH�RST�i��������s�Gse��d� m̀aK_XgmlK_M�kJHQOG��GQGkH�RSRu�P���s�Gse��d� mm_XMglLMM�bJqkGRRHqQPp�RGJ{HIGR __MXMMlLMK�bJqkGRRHqQPp�RGJ{HIGRSp�n�� l̀mKlXMMlLMm�bJqkGRRHqQPp�RGJ{HIGRSb�Wc�dd�W���|IW�U���U]�� NL̀MgKXl_lLMg�bJqkGRRHqQPp�RGJ{HIGRSO���U��se�GOpG��W��}����j�in aKlXMMlL_a�bJqkGRRHqQPp�RGJ{HIGRSRQPb�kWWi�Pdd�dU�����Gse��d� m̀_YgXMMlL_g�bJqkGRRHqQPp�RGJ{HIGRSGOpG�O���UvRU�U��RU���U�w�dUvG�i�T�s�i�ud� malXMMlLKM�bJqkGRRHqQPp�RGJ{HIGRSk��f��d�T��x�U�Pif���dU��U�[��Gse��d� ǸLNMXKNlLK_�bJqkGRRHqQPp�RGJ{HIGRST��x�U��n _l̀_YlXMMllMm��JP{Gp�PQF�IqQkGJGQIGRS�������n KYlXMMlNM_�JGbPHJR�PQF�TPHQ�GQPQIGSJ�e���d�t�T���U������ _agXaMlmM_�qkkHIG�RubbpHGR�PQF�u�HpH�HGRSqcc����R]ee���d _̀_aLXg_lmMK�qkkHIG�RubbpHGR�PQF�u�HpH�HGRSuU���U��d _̀_KYXKLlmMm�qkkHIG�RubbpHGR�PQF�u�HpH�HGRSqe���U�W��R]ee���d magX_KlmMl�qkkHIG�RubbpHGR�PQF�u�HpH�HGRSF]�d̀�R]jd���eU�W�d���i�T�fj��dV�ed L̀g__XKllmMN�qkkHIG�RubbpHGR�PQF�u�HpH�HGRSb���U��n�t�b]j��dV��n LLKXMmlmMY�qkkHIG�RubbpHGR�PQF�u�HpH�HGRSIWff]����U�W�d NNLXaM
Page 13 of 52



����������	
�����������������������������������
�� ���!"#�$"$%

&''()*+�,*-.-��/0120-1*34�5'6780(�94�:;:<�;:=>:�?@�A@BC;<=;; ��DED

FG�H� IJGFH�KLMN�OPPHIG�QRSSTHGQ�UVF�R�HTH�HGQWX�Y�������Z[Y�G\]��Y� L̂NK_̀aNKbMb�OPPHIG�QRSSTHGQ�UVF�R�HTH�HGQWH�Y[�����̂��Z�cY�d���\�Y bLèMM�O�UT

Page 14 of 52



����������	
����������������������������������� �!�"
�#$���%&'�(&()

*++,-./�0.121��34-,15.67�8+9:;<,�=7�>?>@�?ABCD�EF�GF3H?@B?? ��CIC

JK�L� MNKJL�OPPO�Q�RST��T��U�MT��V��W�X�PYZP O[\]O[]̂P_̀̂OP̀a�����_�bc�db��e�fgS�M������W P_PPOaPP�h��bg�Si�N����j�k�� \Y[]\̂_̂aOOP̂�f�lKN�MmNNKn��hooK�opJg��Q�bc�fST���Qg�Ui P_PPOOP\�f�lKN�MmNNKn��hooK�opJg��Q�bc�JJh P_PPÔPP�q��Xq��U�Krs��i� P_PPaPPP�h��bg�Si�q�e�k�� P_PPaOPP�Jg��Sb�fST���Qg�Ui P_PPt̂PP�N�S����U�K�����Wi ]PP[tYO_OO\OPO�q�bs��Se���r�i ]̀a[O]t_YPẐPa�fQQLMK�omqquLKo�v�m�LuL�LKopmS���S��i àZ_YaẐP]�fQQLMK�omqquLKo�v�m�LuL�LKopd�i�������bgi�Krs��i� O\Y_OPZ\PP�qNfQKooLfnhu�oKNwLMKo Z\[OaZ_]O\ZPO�Ln�KNKo��LnMfdKpL�S���iS�v�J�j�U��S�L��bc� P̀_]̀�f�hu

Page 15 of 52



����������	
����������������������������������
� !���"#$�%#%&

'(()*+,�-+./.��01*).2+34�5(6789)�:;4�<;<=�::>:?�'@�A@0B;=>;; ��:C:

DE�F� GHEDF�IJJI�GKLM�KND�GKLM�EOPFQKREN�LST�UVW��W��X�GW��Y��Z�[�\J]̂ _̀Iaàb_Jcb_IJd]�����c�ef�ge��h�ijV�G������Z IkbcbbI]JJ�K��ej�Vl�H����m�n�� I_d̀b]̂cIIIIJ]�i�MEH�GPHHEN��KLLE�LSDj��U�ef�eVW���Zem���f��Vl JcJJIIJb�i�MEH�GPHHEN��KLLE�LSDj��T�ef�iVW���Tj�Xl JcJJIIJk�i�MEH�GPHHEN��KLLE�LSDj��T�ef�DDK JcJJI]IJ�D�oel�Vl[L��j��Vh�D�oel�V k̀aJJcJJIbJJ�p��[p��X�Eqo��l� JcJJIk__�P�X�oel�V�X�Tj�Xl JcJJ]JJJ�K��ej�Vl�p�h�n�� Ik̀\]_c]J]bJJ�Dj��Ve�G�Vh�[�G�o�V���p�er��Vl JcJJ]IJJ�Dj��Ve�iVW���Tj�Xl b̀aJJcJJ]]JJ�D�U����X�H�m��j� JcJJbJJJ�io����Z�����Esj�Vh ]Ì]JJcJJb_JJ�H�V����X�E�����Zl ^̀bb\̀aĴĉIkIJI��KtELSp�eo��Vh���q�l b̀âJ̀d_kc_kkaJI�FN�EHEL��FNGigESF�V���lV�u�D�m�X��Xl b\dckbabJ]�iTTFGE�LPppRFEL�KND�P�FRF�FELSPV���V��l k_acbJabĴ�iTTFGE�LPppRFEL�KND�P�FRF�FELSp���V��Z�u�pjn��lW��Z ÌabJckbabJ\�iTTFGE�LPppRFEL�KND�P�FRF�FELSg�l�������ejl�Eqo��l� IIIĉ]abJ_�iTTFGE�LPppRFEL�KND�P�FRF�FELS���Y�GW��Z�l Id\caaakJJ�p�eU�ll�e����L��m���l I\_̀b̂Jc__aaJJ�Ge�V��njV�e�l�Ve�D�lV���V�Ge�lV�j�V�e��p�er��Vl bbb̀_b]c]Ja\JI�HEN��iH�REKLE�EtpENLESH��V�Eqo��l� Ib̀aJJcJJa_JI�HEpKFH�u�gKFN�ENKNGE�EtpENLELSH�o���l���X�g���V������ bk_c]̂�i�KR

Page 16 of 52



��������� 	
��
����
���������������	������� ��������� ����������� ��������� !�" #$� %&�" #$�'()*+ !,%�# -../0123������������������ 144/-563�������������� 712/88693���������������:�$,;�<##,�# 4.0/504�������������������� .88/=84���������������� 7465/1809������������������ !�<##,�# 16./5203������������������ 4/0-1/4453����������� 7.=5/5.593�������������");;,%��>* ?*!*�*,# 45/01.3�������������������� ==-/6.03�������������� 7=../==293���������������� !�:�$,;�>* ?*!*�*,#�� .4./088�������������������� 4-0/=16���������������� 64/81.���������������������� !�>* ?*!*�*,# ..-/461�������������������� 50-/106���������������� 7.10/85-9���������������@)%&�A ! %B, 845/66.�������������������� 5-0/=40���������������� �CDE���������������������FGHIJ�KLIMLJLHLNO�IPQ�RSPQ�TIJIPUN VWXYZ[\]����������������� Ŷ\_VŶ̂ Z]���������� X̀aZYZXZb]������������c�deLGe�fNIe�MIJIPUNO�IeN�geNhISQLH�IPQ�OSMiNUH�HG�UjIPkNl�m��n� ��� o��n���pnq��� r����pnq���s;�t,;�u�� v,# 4.4/1453������������������ 4=0/0003�������������� 2=w-xy; %�#�z�"�%�;*?)�*�%# 4/615������������������������ 4/1-5/000������������� 0w4x{,*|?);#,|,%�# =.8/-11�������������������� -6=/-.1���������������� 6=w2x{,%� !�}%B�|, 60/6=1���������������������� 54/000������������������� -2w=x}%�,;,#� ./450������������������������ ./000��������������������� 40-w5xFGHIJ�~N�NPSN W[XY�_�]����������������� XYV\̂Y_XV]���������� V̂���������� ��� o��n���pnq��� r����pnq���'|t!�u,,�'vt,%#,#��� �,#/�� v,#�z�A,%,�*�# ==1/54-3������������������ 564/44=3�������������� 8=x:��*B,��)tt!*,#�z���*!*�*,#� 4=/044���������������������� 10/000������������������� 48x� *%�,% %B,�z�{,t *; 420���������������������������� 0���������������������������� 0x�; +,!/��, !#�z��; *%*%� .-5���������������������������� =0/000������������������� 4xs;��,##*�% !��,;+*B,# 25/55.���������������������� =--/100���������������� .5x{,%� !�'vt,%#, ����������������������������� �������������������������� 0xFGHIJ���gNPONO WW_YZWZ]����������������� Ŷ\XVY[̂a]���������� Wa������������������������������� �¡¢�£�������¤¢��������¥¦�������¥ ����¥�������§�¥�¥ ��£������¡�¥��

���������A� ;&�@*% %B* !�{,t�;����̈ #$?� ;&�����©���©����m����ª����on���
��«�¬��o
®E�ED̄EC�D��̄r®E��D����D�C�r

	
��°�����������ª��
�q����pnq���
<B�) ! A)&�,�

-5w86x.w24x0w06x0w08x .4w=5xx������� !�'vt,%#,#'|t!�u,,�'vt,%#,#��� �,#/�� v,#�zA,%,�*�#��*�**,#�z��)tt!*,#� *%�,% %B,�z�{,t *;�; +,!/��, !#�z��; *%*%�s;��,##*�% !��,;+*B,#

Page 17 of 52



��������� 	
��
����
���������������	������� ��������� ����������� ��������� !�" #$� %&�" #$�'()*+ !,%�# -./01.2345��������������� -.-60.-2-5����������� 772./-75��������������8�$,9�:##,�# ;����������������������������� 01.02/������������������� <01.02/=�������������������� !�:##,�# -./01.2345��������������� -.00>.40/5����������� 7>1.0465��������������")99,%��?* @*!*�*,# ;5�������������������������� 46>5���������������������� <46>=5������������������������ !�8�$,9�?* @*!*�*,# ;����������������������������� ;������������������������� ;���������������������������� !�?* @*!*�*,# ;����������������������������� 46>������������������������ <46>=�����������������������A)%&�B ! %C, -./01.234����������������� -.0-6.672������������� ��DEF�D����������������GHIJK�LMJNMKMIMOP�JQR�STQR�UJKJQVO WXYZ[X\]̂_�������������� WXZZ̀X̂ZY_���������� à[XẐb_�������������c�deMHe�fOJe�NJKJQVOP�JeO�geOhJTRMI�JQR�PTNiOVI�IH�VjJQkOl�m��n� ��� o��n���pnq��� r����pnq���s9�t,9�u�� v,# 310.-6>5������������������ 107.4035�������������� 6/w>xy%�,9,#� 3-������������������������������ ->>������������������������ 3>w6xGHIJK�zO{OQTO ][ZXZ\̀_����������������� [ZaXYZ]_������������� bY|�}~������ ��� o��n���pnq��� r����pnq�����*!*�*,# 0325�������������������������� ;5����������������������� ��:s9��,##*�% !��,9+*C,# /4.-02���������������������� 7>7.717����������������� -1x8�$,9��s9*%�*%��s)@!*#$*%�.��)tt!*,# -42���������������������������� ->>������������������������ -42x�,t *9#���� *%�,% %C, ;����������������������������� 2>.>>>������������������� >x" t*� !�s9��,C�# ;����������������������������� 731.-0>����������������� >xGHIJK���gOQPOP ŶXŶ[_������������������� ]̂WX\̀a_������������� ]|��������	
������}~������� ��� o��n���pnq��� r����pnq�����@*!*�u�y�t!,�,%� �*�%�;����%���%�" �,9 # ;����������������������������� 01.-0>������������������� >x��@*!*�u�y�t!,�,%� �*�%�;�y%�9 #�9)C�)9,��,t *9 ;����������������������������� 7>.>>>������������������� >x��9,,�#C t,#��%����,!��s9��,C�# ;����������������������������� ->>.>>>����������������� >x� %% $�s 9��y�t9�+,�,%�# ;����������������������������� 1>.>>>������������������� >x�*+,9#�'&�,��*+,9� !���,C�*%���,t! C,�,%� ;����������������������������� -7>.>>>����������������� >x�*#C,!! %,�)# ;����������������������������� ->.>>>������������������� >xGHIJK�deHiOVI���gOQPOP h_�������������������������� a][XWZ̀_������������� |̀���������������� �¡�¢ £� ¤ �¡�¥�¦§�̈ ���¢� ©§¢ �� ���ª«�����¢�ª¥ ���ª��� � �¬�ª�ª¥��̈����� ¦ ª��

���������B� 9&�A*% %C* !��,t�9��;�� #$@� 9&�q���®����~�̄��
�°������������

�; �> �> �> �> �- �- �- �- �- �-���@*!*�u�y�t!,�,%� �*�%�;����%���%�" �,9 #���@*!*�u�y�t!,�,%� �*�%�;�y%�9 #�9)C�)9,��,t *9���9,,�#C t,#��%����,!��s9��,C�#�� %% $�s 9��y�t9�+,�,%�#��*+,9#�'&�,��*+,9� !���,C�*%���,t! C,�,%���*#C,!! %,�)#
���@*!*�uy�t!,�,%� �*�%�;���%���%�" �,9 # ���@*!*�uy�t!,�,%� �*�%�;y%�9 #�9)C�)9,�,t *9 ���9,,�#C t,#��%���,!��s9��,C�# �� %% $�s 9�y�t9�+,�,%�# ��*+,9#�'&�,�*+,9� !���,C�*%��,t! C,�,%� ��*#C,!! %,�)#�*#Cw ; ; ; ; ; ;"�%�9 C��9 ; ; ; ; ; ;�)tt!*,# ; ; ; ; ; ;

��������	
������±²�}~�������²��
�*#Cw "�%�9 C��9 �)tt!*,#

³FD�É���E��Dr³D�́E�D́�E�µ�r
	
��¶���~�������°��
�q����pnq���

:C�) ! B)&�,�

Page 18 of 52



��������� 	
��
����
���������������	������� ��������� ����������� ��������� !�" #$� %&�" #$�'()*+ !,%�# -./00.0123��������������� 4./5-.4443����������� 1.520.6463�����������7�$,8�9##,�# :5/.6:4�������������������� :42.:/0����������������� ;4:.16-<��������������������� !�9##,�# -.10=.1453��������������� 4.1=1.66/3����������� :.-61.2=-3�����������")88,%��>* ?*!*�*,# /2.6:-3�������������������� 04.0=23����������������� ;2/.=20<3������������������ !�7�$,8�>* ?*!*�*,# 1.055������������������������� @������������������������� 1.055������������������������ !�>* ?*!*�*,# /6.1:-����������������������� 04.0=2������������������� ;16.:20<������������������A)%&�B ! %C, -.11-.51/����������������� 4.1/=.15=������������� �D��EDF���������������GHIJK�LMJNMKMIMOP�JQR�STQR�UJKJQVO WXYZ[XY\]�̂������������� \XY[YX__̀�̂��������� aXW_YXb[W�̂���������c�deMHe�fOJe�NJKJQVOP�JeO�geOhJTRMI�JQR�PTNiOVI�IH�VjJQkOl�m��n� ��� o��n���pnq��� r����pnq���s8�t,8�u�� v,# 1.045.=-03��������������� 2./40.6:53����������� 60w0xy8 %��z,+,%), @����������������������������� @������������������������� {|9z,*}?)8#,},%�# @����������������������������� @������������������������� {|9~%�,8,#� 16=���������������������������� 2.055��������������������� 6w4xGHIJK��O�OQTO YXZ\̀X̀_a�̂������������� bX̀[]XYa]�̂��������� _Z���������� ��� o��n���pnq��� r����pnq���7��*C,��)tt!*,#�����*!*�*,# :.1/43����������������������� :5.5553����������������� /:xs8��,##*�% !��,8+*C,# /6-.14/�������������������� /.2:=.:/0������������� /1xz,%��'vt,%#, /1.055����������������������� 05.555������������������� 5xz,t *8���� *%�,% %C, 12-���������������������������� :05.555����������������� 5x" t*� !�s8��,C�# 111.-1:�������������������� 1.512.14=������������� //x�,?���,8+*C, @����������������������������� -/1.=:5����������������� 5x� v,#����8 %#�,8# @����������������������������� @������������������������� 5xGHIJK���gOQPOP ZYWXbZ_�̂���������������� ZX\WZXY]a�̂��������� W���������	
��������������� ��� o��n���pnq��� r����pnq���>��,8�B� 8&} %|7�� � u�z*+,8� !� @����������������������������� /.555.555������������� 5x�� �,|B� 8&} %|s*%,����@� u�"�%+,8#*�% ::.:20����������������������� 055.555����������������� 2x��8,,�#C t,#|�%����,!��s8��,C�# @����������������������������� 255.555����������������� 5xB u�8�%��� 8���8 *!�'%�*%,,8*%�.��,#*�%.�"�%#�8)C�*�% @����������������������������� :55.555����������������� 5x15-��,#��A8�%����8,,���� *8C #, ;/5.:55<��������������������� /55.555����������������� @/5xz�� 8u��() 8, @����������������������������� /55.555����������������� 5x��?*!*�u�~}t!,},%� �*�%�@�~%�8 #�8)C�)8,�z,t *8 @����������������������������� /55.555����������������� 5x��?*!*�u�~}t!,},%� �*�%�@����%���%�" },8 # @����������������������������� //:.265����������������� 5x��?*!*�u�~}t!,},%� �*�%�@�Bz9�~%�,8!�C !�9�8,,},%� 1:/.66=�������������������� 1:/.66=����������������� /55x��?*!*�u�~}t!,},%� �*�%�@����8}� �,8�~}t8�+,},%�# @����������������������������� /55.555����������������� 5x�*#C,!! %,�)# @����������������������������� /55.555����������������� 5xGHIJK�deHiOVI���gOQPOP YYYXWYa�̂���������������� YX]YbXY\[�̂��������� `̀����������������� �¡�¢ £� ¤ �¡�¥�¦§�̈ ���¢� ©§¢ �� ���ª«�����¢�ª¥ ���ª��� � �¬�ª�ª¥��̈����� ¦ ª��

������
�®�������������p��q��F�̄��F°B� 8&�A*% %C* !�z,t�8��@�� #$?� 8&���������

�;05.555< �@ �05.555 �/55.555 �/05.555 �:55.555 �:05.555 �155.555 �105.555 �255.555 �205.555 �055.555�>��,8�B� 8&} %|7�� � u�z*+,8� !���� �,|B� 8&} %|s*%,����@� u�"�%+,8#*�%���8,,�#C t,#|�%����,!��s8��,C�#�B u�8�%��� 8���8 *!�'%�*%,,8*%�.��,#*�%.�"�%#�8)C�*�%�15-��,#��A8�%����8,,���� *8C #,�z�� 8u��() 8,���?*!*�u�~}t!,},%� �*�%�@�~%�8 #�8)C�)8,�z,t *8���?*!*�u�~}t!,},%� �*�%�@����%���%�" },8 #���?*!*�u�~}t!,},%� �*�%�@�Bz9�~%�,8!�C !�9�8,,},%����?*!*�u�~}t!,},%� �*�%�@����8}� �,8�~}t8�+,},%�#��*#C,!! %,�)#

�>��,8B� 8&} %|7�� � uz*+,8� !� �� �,|B� 8&} %|s*%,����@� u"�%+,8#*�% ��8,,�#C t,#|�%����,!�s8��,C�# �B u�8�%��� 8��8 *!'%�*%,,8*%�.�,#*�%."�%#�8)C�*�% �15-��,#�A8�%����8,,��� *8C #, �z�� 8u��() 8, ���?*!*�u~}t!,},%� �*�%�@~%�8 #�8)C�)8,z,t *8 ���?*!*�u~}t!,},%� �*�%�@����%���%" },8 # ���?*!*�u~}t!,},%� �*�%�@�Bz9~%�,8!�C !9�8,,},%� ���?*!*�u~}t!,},%� �*�%�@����8}� �,8~}t8�+,},%�#��*#C,!! %,�)#�*#Cw @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @ 1:/.66= @ @"�%�8 C��8 @ ::.:20 @ @ ;/5.:55< @ @ @�)tt!*,# @ @ @ @ @ @ @ @

��������	
������±²����������²��

�*#Cw "�%�8 C��8 �)tt!*,#

³�D́��DF�́�D���r³�DE�́Dµ���D�́�r
	
��¶�����������®��
�q����pnq���

9C�) ! B)&�,�

Page 19 of 52



 

 
Minutes of the 

Downtown Development Authority for the City of Traverse City 
Governance Committee 

Monday, September 30, 2024  
 
          A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority of the City of Traverse City was 
called to order at the Committee Room, Governmental Center, 400 Boardman Avenue, Traverse 
City, Michigan, at 9 a.m. 
  
          The following Board Members were in attendance: Mayor Amy Shamroe, Board Member 
Todd McMillen, Board Member Peter Kirkwood, and Board Member Hillary Ascroft  
  
          The following Board Members were absent:   None 
  
          Chairperson McMillen presided at the meeting. 
  
 
(a) CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order by Chair McMillen at 1:15pm. 
 
(b) ROLL CALL 
 
(c) CONSENT CALENDAR 

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping 
non-controversial items together to be dealt with by one DDA Board motion without 
discussion. Any member of the DDA Board, staff or the public may ask that any item on 
the consent calendar be removed therefrom and placed elsewhere on the agenda for 
individual consideration by the DDA Board; and such requests will be automatically 
respected.  If an item is not removed from the consent calendar, the action noted in 
parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single DDA Board action adopting the 
consent calendar.  

 (1) Motion to Amend Agenda to remove Consent Calendar. 
 
Moved by Amy Shamroe, Seconded by Peter Kirkwood 
 
Yes: Amy Shamroe, Todd McMillen, Peter Kirkwood, and Hillary Ascroft 
Absent: None 

CARRIED. 4-0-0 on a recorded vote  

Page 1 of 2

Page 20 of 52



 
 
(d) ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
(e) OLD BUSINESS  
 (1) Governance Committee Items 

 
  
The following addressed the Commitee: 
Harry Burkholder 
Todd McMillen 
Amy Shamroe 
Pete Kirkwood 
Hillary Ascroft 
  
   

 
(f) NEW BUSINESS 

n/a 
 
(g) PUBLIC COMMENT 

n/a 
 
(h) ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting was adjourned by Chair McMillen at 2:15pm. 
 

Harry Burkholder, Executive Director 
 

Page 2 of 2

Page 21 of 52



 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 

           Memorandum 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    DDA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director  
   
Date:   October 13, 2024  
 
Subject:  Pilot Downtown Composting Program   
 
 
As you might recall, in January, the DDA entered into a contract with SEEDS to assist 
with the implementation of a pilot-scaled composting program for downtown restaurants. 
SEEDS is leading administrative, outreach, education, recruitment, promotion and 
hauling activities. In addition, SEEDS is assisting with the development and tracking of 
key metrics for the successful implementation of the program. Now it its tenth month, 
Jennifer Flynn, Program Director with SEEDS and our point-person for this project, will 
be on hand to provide a brief summary on how the pilot project has progressed and 
some of its successes. 
 
Pilot Summary Overview 
 

Participating Businesses (4)  
• Workshop Brewing Company 
• Espresso Bay 
• Amical 
• Identity Brewing Company  

 
 - Participation at Mundo’s 305 is pending  
 - The Cooks House moved back to farm pick-up in the spring 
 - Sara Hardy Farmers Market Vendors participate  

  
Waste Diversion  
• Diverted waste totals of over 4,300 gallons (approximately 2,364 pounds of food 

scraps)  
• 65 pounds of food scraps and 20,000 pounds of mushroom spawns collected from 

the Farmers Market  
• In total, this effort has sequestered approximately 46.5 MYCO2e metric tons of 

carbon dioxide that would have been emitted 
 

Page 22 of 52



 
 

Challenges  
• Businesses still require additional training for back-of-house staff 
• Owners and management have been too busy for follow up over the summer (we 

expect to see additional positive responses as the fall season winds down) 
• A major consideration of businesses participation is the concern of bin placement 

outside of their establishment (this may provide an opportunity for the DDA)  
 
Marketing Materials   

• The DDA worked with Greenlight Marketing to develop a logo for the pilot 
program. The logo will be affixed to future marketing materials.  

 
 
      

Page 23 of 52



 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 

            Memorandum 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
To:    Downtown Development Authority Board 
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director  
   
Date:   October 13, 2024 
 
Subject:  West Front Street Bridge Staircase 
 
 
In 2022, congruent with of the reconstruction of the West Front Street Bridge and 
construction of the new development at 309 Pine Street, the DDA and City began work 
to: (1) secure an easement along the Boardman/Ottaway River (in front of the 309 
building) for a pedestrian pathway and (2); explore the potential for a pedestrian 
staircase, connecting the bridge and sidewalk along Front Street) to the pathway  
 
This effort was spurred by the Lower Boardman/Ottaway Unified Plan, which details 
plans for a pedestrian pathway along the entire 1.6 miles of the Boardman/Ottaway 
River as it traverses through Downtown. Just to note, there is existing boardwalk up to 
the edge of the adjacent property to the south (Riverview Terrace Apartments) and 
pilings were placed under the West Front Stret Bridge that could support a boardwalk 
under the bridge at a future date.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Proposed Staircase 

Existing Pathway 

Proposed Staircase 

Page 24 of 52



 
 

Last year, we worked with Machin Engineering to develop the schematic design (see 
below) and construction drawings (see attached) for the staircase. The intent of the 
design was to mimic the aesthetic of the boardwalk along the Boardman Lake Loop 
Trail (i.e. IPA wood decking, galvanized railings, step-lighting).    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
In June, understanding the desire to move forward with this project, the staircase was 
ultimately included in the 2024-2025 TIF-97 Budget, with an allocation of $100,000. 
 
In August, the city secured an easement for the public pathway from GLA Northern 
Michigan Pine, LLC (309 Pine Street). Note: the pathway is currently in place. 
 
In September, the city issued an RFP for the construction of the staircase, with bids due 
on October 4th. The city received two bid proposals: 
 

$227,169 – (RCI) Richter Construction, Inc.  
$231,000 - Spence Brothers 

 
Following an addendum of the RFP prior to the receipt of bids to address certain 
changes related to electrical service (i.e., the elimination of solar powered battery 
backup system for the staircase lighting), and a subsequent discussion with RCI 
contractors, a final bid of $213,819.00 was submitted by RCI to the city. 
 
In addition to the cost for construction, if the DDA decides to move forward, the DDA will 
need to: (1) set aside a 10% contingency fund $21,400 and; (2) contract with Machin 
Engineering to manage the construction project (similar to the arrangement we have for 
the Hannah Park overlook project). We are estimating a cost not to exceed $11,000 for 
construction management for a total stairway project cost of $246,219 – leaving a 
budget shortfall of roughly $146,219. 
 
I am asking the DDA Board to consider contributing an additional $146,219 toward this 
project. Keep in mind, $21,400 is included for project contingency and may not 
ultimately be used. In order to contribute additional funding toward this project, the DDA 
Board must first make a budget amendment to the TIF-97 budget of $146,219.     
 
The projected fund balance for TIF-97 is $6,635,805.  

Page 25 of 52



 
 

 
If the budget amendment is approved by the DDA Board, the budget amendment (and 
contract with RCI) would be presented to the City Commission for approval in 
November. If the budget amendment and contract is approved by the City Commission, 
work on the staircase would begin in the spring.  
 
Zach Cole, from the City’s Engineering Office will be at our meeting to answer any 
questions.  
   
Recommended Motion 
That the DDA Board approve an increase to the 2024/2025 TIF-97 Budget for the West 
Front Street Staircase to $246,219 and furthermore; that up to an additional $146,219 
from TIF-97 be allocated for the construction of the West Front Street Staircase and 
furthermore; that the DDA enter into a contract with Machin Engineering for a not-to-
exceed cost of $11,000 for construction management of the West End Staircase, 
subject to approval as to its from and substance by the DDA Executive Director and the 
DDA Attorney. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26 of 52



CLIENT:

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE
PHASE:

DATE
ISSUED:

REVISION

www.machinengineering.net

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
20

24
 M

ac
hi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 IN

C

SHEET
NUMBER

PROJECT
NUMBER

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT LOCATION:

DESCRIPTIONREV# DATE

DRAWN BY:

JLS

CHECK BY:

PJM

APPROVED BY:

PJM

CREATED:

09/26/2023

ON 11x17 SHEET SCALE: HALF
ON 22x34 SHEET SCALE: FULL (AS NOTED)

1235 E FRONT ST, Suite A
TRAVERSE CITY, MI PH 231.935.1530

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

PROPOSED
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

W FRONT ST
STAIRCASE

.

COVER
SHEET

23141
T1

GRAND TRAVERSE CO, MI

REV #1 02/08/2024

11/01/2023

CONSTRUCTION

A REVIEW - 30% DESIGN JLS092723

B REVIEW - 60% DESIGN JLS101223

C REVIEW - 75% DESIGN JLS101723

D REVIEW - 90% DESIGN JLS101823

0 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION JLS110123

1 REVISED PER TC ENGINEERING DEPT REVIEW COMMENTS JLS020824

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
PROPOSED CITY OF TRAVESE CITY

W FRONT ST STAIRCASE
PLAN SET

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
PROPOSED CITY OF TRAVESE CITY

W FRONT ST STAIRCASE
PLAN SET

PROJECT
LOCATION

SHEET INDEX
T1 COVER SHEET
R1 NOTES & SPECIFICATIONS
R2 NOTES & SPECIFICATIONS
C1 EXISTING CONDITION/DEMOLITION PLAN & PROPOSED SITE PLAN
C2 MAINTAINING OF TRAFFIC PLAN
C3 CONSTRUCTION DETAILS
S1 PROPOSED LANDING FRAMING LAYOUT & DETAILS
S2 PROPOSED HELICAL PILE & FRAMING LAYOUT
S3 PROPOSED STAIR LAYOUT & SECTIONS
S4 PROPOSED STAIR, RAILING, & PILE DETAILS

      VICINITY MAP      

GRAND
TRAVERSE
COUNTY

   OWNER/APPLICANT   
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA

303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

AGENCIES
PLANNING/ZONING
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY
400  BOARDMAN AVE
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684
Contact:  DAVE WESTON
Phone: (231) 929-4460

D.P.W.
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DPW
400 BOARDMAN AVE
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684
Contact:  JUSTIN ROY
Phone: (231) 922-4923

BUILDING CODES
GRAND TARVERSE COUNTY
2650 LAFRANIER RD
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686
Contact: BRUCE REMAI
Phone: (231) 995-6044

ELECTRIC
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER
1131 HASTINGS ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684
Contact: TONY CHARTRAND
Phone: (231) 934-4544

CABLE TELEVISION
CHARTER SPECTRUM

TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686
Contact: ANDREW MARSH
Phone: (231) 941-3829

SOIL AND EROSION
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY
400 BOARDMAN AVE
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684
Contact:  JOHN McWETHY
Phone: (231) 922-4467

TELEPHONE
AT&T 
142 E. STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684
Contact:  JEFFERY SCHUSTER
Phone: (231) 779-8451

ROADS AND STREETS
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY
400 BOARDMAN AVE
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684
Contact: MARK JONES
Phone: (231) 922-4900

NATURAL GAS
MICHCON
1011 HASTINGS ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686
Contact:  LARRY BOURKE
Phone: (231) 592-3244

FIRE CODE
TRAVERSE CITY FIRE DEPARTMENT
510 W FRONT ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684
Contact:  CAPT. KEITH FRITZ
Phone: (231) 922-4930, EXT 3

EMERGENCIES
POLICE DEPARTMENT:  9-1-1
FIRE DEPARTMENTS:  9-1-1
AMBULANCE:  9-1-1

1392 TRADE CENTER DR

EGLE
ENVIRONMENT, GREAT LAKES & ENERGY
120 W CHAPIN ST
CADILLAC, MI 49601
Contact:  .
Phone: (231) 775-1511

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

      LOCATION MAP      
SECTION 3, T27N, R11W, CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

NO SCALE

1

09/05/2024

Page 27 of 52



CLIENT:

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE
PHASE:

DATE
ISSUED:

REVISION

www.machinengineering.net

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
20

24
 M

ac
hi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 IN

C

SHEET
NUMBER

PROJECT
NUMBER

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT LOCATION:

DESCRIPTIONREV# DATE

DRAWN BY:

JLS

CHECK BY:

PJM

APPROVED BY:

PJM

CREATED:

09/26/2023

ON 11x17 SHEET SCALE: HALF
ON 22x34 SHEET SCALE: FULL (AS NOTED)

1235 E FRONT ST, Suite A
TRAVERSE CITY, MI PH 231.935.1530

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

PROPOSED
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

W FRONT ST
STAIRCASE

.

NOTES
&

SPECIFICATIONS

23141
R1

GRAND TRAVERSE CO, MI

REV #1 02/08/2024

11/01/2023

CONSTRUCTION

A REVIEW - 30% DESIGN JLS092723

B REVIEW - 60% DESIGN JLS101223

C REVIEW - 75% DESIGN JLS101723

D REVIEW - 90% DESIGN JLS101823

0 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION JLS110123

1 REVISED PER TC ENGINEERING DEPT REVIEW COMMENTS JLS020824

SPECIFICATIONS SPECIFICATIONS (CONTINUED) SPECIFICATIONS (CONTINUED) SPECIFICATIONS (CONTINUED)

1

09/05/2024

Page 28 of 52



CLIENT:

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE
PHASE:

DATE
ISSUED:

REVISION

www.machinengineering.net

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
20

24
 M

ac
hi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 IN

C

SHEET
NUMBER

PROJECT
NUMBER

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT LOCATION:

DESCRIPTIONREV# DATE

DRAWN BY:

JLS

CHECK BY:

PJM

APPROVED BY:

PJM

CREATED:

09/26/2023

ON 11x17 SHEET SCALE: HALF
ON 22x34 SHEET SCALE: FULL (AS NOTED)

1235 E FRONT ST, Suite A
TRAVERSE CITY, MI PH 231.935.1530

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

PROPOSED
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

W FRONT ST
STAIRCASE

.

NOTES
&

SPECIFICATIONS

23141
R2

GRAND TRAVERSE CO, MI

. .

11/01/2023

CONSTRUCTION

A REVIEW - 30% DESIGN JLS092723

B REVIEW - 60% DESIGN JLS101223

C REVIEW - 75% DESIGN JLS101723

D REVIEW - 90% DESIGN JLS101823

0 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION JLS110123

STEEL FABRICATION

VERIFICATION AND INSPECTION TASK

FREQUENCY
(P-PERIODIC,

C-CONTINUOUS)
REFERENCED
STANDARD

09/05/2024

Page 29 of 52



CLIENT:

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE
PHASE:

DATE
ISSUED:

REVISION

www.machinengineering.net

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
20

23
 M

ac
hi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 IN

C

SHEET
NUMBER

PROJECT
NUMBER

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT LOCATION:

DESCRIPTIONREV# DATE

DRAWN BY:

JLS

CHECK BY:

PJM

APPROVED BY:

PJM

CREATED:

09/26/2023

ON 11x17 SHEET SCALE: HALF
ON 22x34 SHEET SCALE: FULL (AS NOTED)

1235 E FRONT ST, Suite A
TRAVERSE CITY, MI PH 231.935.1530

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

PROPOSED
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

W FRONT ST
STAIRCASE

.

EXISTING CONDITION /
DEMOLITION PLAN

&
PROPOSED PLAN

23141
C1

GRAND TRAVERSE CO, MI

REV #2 09/04/2024

11/01/2023

CONSTRUCTION

A REVIEW - 30% DESIGN JLS092723

B REVIEW - 60% DESIGN JLS101223

C REVIEW - 75% DESIGN JLS101723

D REVIEW - 90% DESIGN JLS101823

0 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION JLS110123

1 REVISED PER TC ENGINEERING DEPT REVIEW COMMENTS KAS020824

2 REVISED PER TC ENGINEERING DEPT REVIEW COMMENTS KAS090424

EXISTING BUILDING

BO
AR

DM
AN

 R
IV

ER

PROPOSED STAIRCASE
- SEE SHEETS 'S1-S4' FOR

ADD'L INFORMATION

PROPOSED SITE PLAN 3

EXISTING CONDITION / DEMOLITION PLAN 1

REMOVE EXT'G SHRUBS AS
REQUIRED FOR CONSTRUCTION

(TYP)

N

N

CONTRACTOR TO CUT DOWN
EXT'G STEEL SHEET PILING TO
CONSTRUCT CONCRETE LANDING

PROPOSED SITE GRADING AND SE&SC PLAN 4

N

KEY NOTES 2

EXISTING BUILDING EXISTING BUILDINGBO
AR

DM
AN

 R
IV

ER

BO
AR

DM
AN

 R
IV

ER

INSTALL REINF CONCRETE LANDING
- REFER TO STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR ADD'L INFORMATION

INSTALL HELICAL PILE
- REFER TO STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR ADD'L INFORMATION

1

2

1

2TYP

±31 LFT OF TURBIDITY CURTAIN ±3' FROM SHORE

INSTALL SILT FENCE
SEE DETAIL '9/C2'

INSTALL COCONUT COIR LOGS
SEE DETAIL '1/C2'

1

1

2

2

27 LFT

3

3 30 LFT

3 143 LFT

MATCH EXT'G

NOTE:
TIME OF SURVEY, CONCRETE SIDEWALK WAS
UNFINISHED NEAR EXISTING BUILDING AND
SHEET PILE WALL

REVISED WHOLE
PLAN SHEET

2

CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE AND REPLACE
EXISTING RIP RAP AS NECESSARY TO

FACILITATE CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE AND REPLACE
EXISTING RIP RAP AS NECESSARY TO

FACILITATE CONSTRUCTION

1
09/05/2024

Page 30 of 52



EIGHTH ST.

EL
M

W
OO

D 
AV

E.
 

UN
IO

N 
ST

.

LO
CU

ST
 S

T.

PI
NE

 S
T.

M
AP

LE
 S

T.

DI
VI

SI
ON

 S
T.

W
AD

SW
OR

TH
 S

T.

SP
RU

CE
 S

T.
SP

RU
CE

 S
T.

RANDOLPH ST.

GI
LL

IS
 S

T.

THIRD ST.

SECOND ST.

FRONT ST.

STATE ST.

LAKE AVE.

GRANDVIEW  PARKWAY

GARLAND ST.

FRONT ST.

FIFTH ST.

SIXTH ST.

SEVENTH ST.

EIGHTH ST.

OA
K 

ST
.

CE
DA

R 
ST

.

THIRD ST.

SECOND ST.

CYPRESS ST.

CE
DA

R 
ST

.

THIRD ST.

FRONT ST.

SIXTH ST.

SEVENTH ST.

BE
AU

M
ON

T 
PL

AC
E

M
ON

RO
E 

ST
.

PI
NE

 S
T.

CA
SS

 S
T.

HA
LL

 S
T.

M
AP

LE
 S

T.

W
AD

SW
OR

TH
 S

T.

FRONT ST.

PI
NE

 S
T.

HA
LL

 S
T.

CLIENT:

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE
PHASE:

DATE
ISSUED:

REVISION

www.machinengineering.net

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
20

23
 M

ac
hi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 IN

C

SHEET
NUMBER

PROJECT
NUMBER

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT LOCATION:

DESCRIPTIONREV# DATE

DRAWN BY:

JLS

CHECK BY:

PJM

APPROVED BY:

PJM

CREATED:

09/26/2023

ON 11x17 SHEET SCALE: HALF
ON 22x34 SHEET SCALE: FULL (AS NOTED)

1235 E FRONT ST, Suite A
TRAVERSE CITY, MI PH 231.935.1530

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

PROPOSED
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

W FRONT ST
STAIRCASE

.

MAINTAINING
OF

TRAFFIC PLAN

23141
C2

GRAND TRAVERSE CO, MI

REV #1 02/08/2024

11/01/2023

CONSTRUCTION

A REVIEW - 30% DESIGN JLS092723

B REVIEW - 60% DESIGN JLS101223

C REVIEW - 75% DESIGN JLS101723

D REVIEW - 90% DESIGN JLS101823

0 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION JLS110123

1 REVISED PER TC ENGINEERING DEPT REVIEW COMMENTS KAS020824

BO
AR

DM
AN

 R
IV

ER

PEDESTRIAN DETOUR PLAN 2

PROPOSED PHASE I DETOUR PLAN 1

CONSTRUCTION STAGING:

PHASE I:

CLOSURE OF EAST BOUND W FRONT STREET WHILE MAINTAINING NORTH, SOUTH, AND WESTBOUND
TRAFFIC FLOW THROUGH THE INTERSECTION OF W FRONT STREET AND HALL STREET IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE PLAN FOR THE PHASE DETOUR.

MAINTAINING TRAFFIC NOTES:

1. ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL AND PEDESTRIAN DETOUR DEVICES AND SIGNAGE SHALL BE INCLUDED IN
THE PAY ITEM "MOBILIZATION/TRAFFIC CONTROL".

2. PORTABLE SECURITY FENCE TO BE PAID FOR SEPARATELY.

3. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE, ERECT AND  MAINTAIN ALL NECESSARY BARRICADES, SIGNS
AND  OTHER NECESSARY TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES IN  ACCORDANCE WITH THE MUTCD 11TH
EDITION AND THE MDOT "MAINTENANCE MAINTAINING TRAFFIC TYPICALS" (NOVEMBER 2020).

4. TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE CONSOLIDATED WHEN POSSIBLE IN THE EVENT OF
OVERLAPPING DETOURS.

5. TRAFFIC SHALL BE MAINTAINED TO ALL LOCAL  RESIDENCES AND BUSINESSES AT ALL TIMES.

6. ALL SIGNS SHALL BE TYPE B, TEMP, PRISMATIC. FLEXIBLE ROLL UP SIGNS WILL NOT BE ALLOWED.

7. IT IS ANTICIPATED THAT CONSTRUCTION STAGING WILL COMMENCE AS OUTLINED IN THE SPECIAL
PROVISION FOR MAINTAINING TRAFFIC. CHANGES TO THE CONSTRUCTION STAGING SHALL BE
APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

8. MAINTAIN PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES USING EXISTING SIDEWALKS, PROPOSED SIDEWALKS OR
TEMPORARY WOOD SIDEWALKS AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER.

9. ALL SIGNS SHALL BE PLACED IN LOCATIONS SUCH THAT A MINIMUM 5 FT. CLEAR PATH ON ALL
SIDEWALKS IS MAINTAINED.

10. SEE THE PROPOSAL FOR MDOT TYPICALS M0020a, M0070a, M0080a, M0110a, M0730a, M0880a AND
STANDARD PLANS WZD-100-A AND WZD-125-E.

11. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH MDOT, CITY, AND OTHER WORK AS APPLICABLE.

12. FOR SIGNS REQUIRING TWO POSTS, POST SPACING SHALL BE ADJUSTED TO
        AVOID OBSTRUCTING SIDEWALKS.

14. CONTRACTOR SHALL SECURE THE WORK AREA WITH SECURITY FENCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY SPECIAL PROVISION FOR SECURITY FENCING.

CHANNELIZING DEVICES

WORK AREA

TRAFFIC FLOW

PEDESTRIAN TYPE II BARRICADE, TEMP

SIGN, TYPE B, TEMP, PRISMATIC

BARRICADE, TYPE III, HIGH INTENSITY,
DOUBLE SIDED, LIGHTED

LEGEND 4

SIGNAGE KEY NOTES 5

EXISTING BUILDING

MAINTAIN ACCESS FOR
EXISTING DOOR TO SIDEWALK

WORKER PARKING AND STORAGE AREA
- WORK ACTIVITIES AND MATERIAL
STORAGE SUBJECT TO ENGINEER
APPROVAL ON BRIDGE

CONSTRUCTION WORK ZONE
WORKING, LOADING & UNLOADING
(NO PARKING, BIKE LANE,
PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC ON PROJECT
SIDE OF WEST FRONT STREET

***

***

± 188 LFT OF PORTABLE
SECURITY FENCE

AHEAD
DETOUR

DETOUR

DETOUR

DETOUR

DETOUR
ENDS

ROAD
CLOSED

FRONT STREET

FRONT ST. CLOSED
AT HALL ST

SEEK ALTERNATE ROUTE

FRONT ST. CLOSED
AT PINE ST

SEEK ALTERNATE ROUTE

DETOUR
ENDS

DETOUR

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

ROAD
CLOSED
AHEAD

DO  NOT

ENTER

ROAD WORK
END1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

A

B

C

D

E

F

14

71 3 136 13

1 5

1 4
13

1 3

1 4

1 5 8

TRAFFIC DETOUR
ROUTE

PEDESTRIAN DETOUR
ROUTE

7

14

129

6

14

14

12

12

12

B C

B CB E

F

BE

F

F
1 5

F

1 5 8

NOTES 3

ADDED PLAN
SHEET

1

09/05/2024

Page 31 of 52



NOT USED 4NOT USED 3NOT USED 2DETAIL 1

NOT USED 8NOT USED 7NOT USED 6

NOT USED 12NOT USED 11NOT USED 10

CLIENT:

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE
PHASE:

DATE
ISSUED:

REVISION

www.machinengineering.net

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
20

23
 M

ac
hi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 IN

C

SHEET
NUMBER

PROJECT
NUMBER

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT LOCATION:

DESCRIPTIONREV# DATE

DRAWN BY:

JLS

CHECK BY:

PJM

APPROVED BY:

PJM

CREATED:

09/26/2023

ON 11x17 SHEET SCALE: HALF
ON 22x34 SHEET SCALE: FULL (AS NOTED)

1235 E FRONT ST, Suite A
TRAVERSE CITY, MI PH 231.935.1530

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

PROPOSED
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

W FRONT ST
STAIRCASE

.

CONSTRUCTION
DETAILS

23141
C2

GRAND TRAVERSE CO, MI

REV #1 02/08/2024

11/01/2023

CONSTRUCTION

A REVIEW - 30% DESIGN JLS092723

B REVIEW - 60% DESIGN JLS101223

C REVIEW - 75% DESIGN JLS101723

D REVIEW - 90% DESIGN JLS101823

0 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION JLS110123

1 REVISED PER TC ENGINEERING DEPT REVIEW COMMENTS KAS020824

SILT FENCE 9

FRONT ELEVATION

SECTION VIEW

PLAN VIEW

REVISED WHOLE
PLAN SHEET

1

09/05/2024

Page 32 of 52



CLIENT:

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE
PHASE:

DATE
ISSUED:

REVISION

www.machinengineering.net

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
20

24
 M

ac
hi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 IN

C

SHEET
NUMBER

PROJECT
NUMBER

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT LOCATION:

DESCRIPTIONREV# DATE

DRAWN BY:

JLS

CHECK BY:

PJM

APPROVED BY:

PJM

CREATED:

09/26/2023

ON 11x17 SHEET SCALE: HALF
ON 22x34 SHEET SCALE: FULL (AS NOTED)

1235 E FRONT ST, Suite A
TRAVERSE CITY, MI PH 231.935.1530

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

PROPOSED
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

W FRONT ST
STAIRCASE

.

PROPOSED
LANDING

FRAMING LAYOUT
& DETAILS

23141
S1

GRAND TRAVERSE CO, MI

REV #1 02/08/2024

11/01/2023

CONSTRUCTION

A REVIEW - 30% DESIGN JLS092723

B REVIEW - 60% DESIGN JLS101223

C REVIEW - 75% DESIGN JLS101723

D REVIEW - 90% DESIGN JLS101823

0 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION JLS110123

1 REVISED PER TC ENGINEERING DEPT REVIEW COMMENTS JLS020824

LANDING FRAMING LAYOUT

WELD CAP SUPPORTS OF L 3"x3"x3
16"

EVERY SH SET. WELD TO SH AFTER
LEVELING. ALT LOCATIONS ON
SHEETING ALONG LG OF WALL TO
MAINTAIN STABILITY OF CAP

PROPOSED BENT PL CAP

2
S1

DETAIL2
S1 Scale:  1 1/2"=1'-0"

1812"

SECTION1
S1 Scale:  1 1/2"=1'-0"

DETAIL

PVC CANT STRIP
URETHANE SEALANT

COMPOSITE GALV DECKING
NUCOR 2.0 VLI-36, 20 GA.

5" CONC SLAB
W/ 6x6-W2.9xW2.9 W.W.R.

PROPOSED
CONC SLAB

EXT'G
SLAB

TOOL JNT

CLOSURE BENT PL

W8x21 BM

L4x4x3
8"

4'-0"±

ES'T 4"

W8x21 BM

C1
0x

15
.3

L4x4x3
8"

L4
x4

x3 8"
 B

RA
CE

L4
x4

x3 8"
 B

RA
CE

L4
x4

x3 8"

7-10"±

8'
-5

1 2"
±

CUT DOWN EXT'G STL SH PILE
WALL TO ALLOW FOR BENT PL CAP

L4
x4

x3 8" 
BR

'G

45°

POUR THICKER TO FILL
GAPS, SURCHARGE CONC

TO SEAL STL SH PILE

1
S1

LEGEND

S-X REINFORCED CONCRETE SLAB

S-
1

PROPOSED
L-SUPPORT (TYP)

WELD BRACE & SHIM PLATES
BETWEEN C-SHAPE & END OF
STL SH PILE AS NECESSARY

WELD BRACE & SHIM PLATES
BETWEEN C-SHAPE & END OF

STL SH PILE AS NECESSARY

3
8" CLIP PL WELDED TO

BM & BOLTED TO ANGLE

MIN 1) #4 CONT

END ANGLE TO BE WELDED
TO BM & SHELF ANGLE

FASTEN DECKING TO BM & CLOSURE
PL W/ #12 TEK SCREWS @ 12" O.C.
ALONG LENGTH & EVERY RIB

FILL CONC FROM
SIDEWALK TO BLDG

1" AIR GAP

SECTION3
S1 Scale:  1 1/2"=1'-0"

CONC LANDING
BLOCK OUT OR CAST LIGHT

BOX INTO CONC FOR
LIGHTING @ LANDING

CLOSURE BENT PL

C10x15.3

3
S1

3
S1

STONE BACKFILL
AS NEEDED

1

TOOLED CONTRACTION JT
TO CONTROL CRACKING

FIBER EXP JT MATERIAL
UNDER SEALANT

1

1

1

COMPOSITE GALV DECKING
NUCOR 2.0 VLI-36, 20 GA.

NOTE:
CONTRACTOR TO REFER TO ELECTRICAL
DRAWINGS FOR CONDUITS AND POWER LAYOUT.

****

****

09/05/2024

Page 33 of 52



CLIENT:

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE
PHASE:

DATE
ISSUED:

REVISION

www.machinengineering.net

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
20

24
 M

ac
hi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 IN

C

SHEET
NUMBER

PROJECT
NUMBER

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT LOCATION:

DESCRIPTIONREV# DATE

DRAWN BY:

JLS

CHECK BY:

PJM

APPROVED BY:

PJM

CREATED:

09/26/2023

ON 11x17 SHEET SCALE: HALF
ON 22x34 SHEET SCALE: FULL (AS NOTED)

1235 E FRONT ST, Suite A
TRAVERSE CITY, MI PH 231.935.1530

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

PROPOSED
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

W FRONT ST
STAIRCASE

.

PROPOSED
HELICAL PILE

&
FRAMING LAYOUT

23141
S2

GRAND TRAVERSE CO, MI

. .

11/01/2023

CONSTRUCTION

A REVIEW - 30% DESIGN JLS092723

B REVIEW - 60% DESIGN JLS101223

C REVIEW - 75% DESIGN JLS101723

D REVIEW - 90% DESIGN JLS101823

0 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION JLS110123

STAIR FRAMING LAYOUT

HELICAL PILE LAYOUT

3'-9"

3'
-9

"

01

03

05 06

04

02

7'
-0

"
7'

-1
17

8"

14
'-1

17
8"

7'-0"

90
°

7'-2"

HSS 8x6x14" BM

HS
S 

8x
6x

1 4"
 B

M

HSS 5x2x14"
STRINGER @ 16" O.C.

HSS 12x6x14"
STRINGER

HSS 12x6x1
4" BM HSS 12x6x14"

STRINGER

C4x4.5 JST @ 16" O.C.

HSS 12x6x14" BM

HSS 5x2x14"
STRINGER @ 16" O.C.

HSS 12x6x1
4"

STRINGER
HSS 12x6x14"
STRINGER

LEGEND

L8x6x1
2" FOOT BM

W/ BEARING PL

09/05/2024

Page 34 of 52



CLIENT:

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE
PHASE:

DATE
ISSUED:

REVISION

www.machinengineering.net

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
20

24
 M

ac
hi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 IN

C

SHEET
NUMBER

PROJECT
NUMBER

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT LOCATION:

DESCRIPTIONREV# DATE

DRAWN BY:

JLS

CHECK BY:

PJM

APPROVED BY:

PJM

CREATED:

09/26/2023

ON 11x17 SHEET SCALE: HALF
ON 22x34 SHEET SCALE: FULL (AS NOTED)

1235 E FRONT ST, Suite A
TRAVERSE CITY, MI PH 231.935.1530

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

PROPOSED
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

W FRONT ST
STAIRCASE

.

PROPOSED
STAIR LAYOUT

&
SECTIONS

23141
S3

GRAND TRAVERSE CO, MI

REV #1 02/08/2024

11/01/2023

CONSTRUCTION

A REVIEW - 30% DESIGN JLS092723

B REVIEW - 60% DESIGN JLS101223

C REVIEW - 75% DESIGN JLS101723

D REVIEW - 90% DESIGN JLS101823

0 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION JLS110123

1 REVISED PER TC ENGINEERING DEPT REVIEW COMMENTS JLS020824

STAIR LAYOUT

±6'-5" RUN
7) TREADS @ 11" EA

±
4'

-5
5 16

" 
RI

SE

8)
 R

IS
ER

S 
@

 6
11

16
" 

EA

7'
-0

"

7'-818"

2
S3

1
S3

SECTION1
S3 Scale:  1/2"=1'-0"

SECTION2
S3 Scale:  1/2"=1'-0"

HSS 5x2x1
4"

GALV STRINGER

HSS 8x6x14"
GALV BM

HSS 12x6x14"
GALV BM

HSS 5x2x1
4"

GALV STRINGER

HSS 8x6x1
4"

GALV BM

HSS 12x6x1
4"

GALV BM

1" DECKING1" DECKING

±7'-4" RUN
8) TREADS @ 11" EA

HELICAL PILEHELICAL PILE

±
5'

-0
" 

RI
SE

9)
 R

IS
ER

S 
@

 6
11

16
" 

EA

CONC LANDINGCONC LANDING

L11
2"x11

2"x3
16" GALV

CROSS BR'G (TYP)

3"
 M

AX
(T

YP
)

SINGLE 58"Ø GALV
BOLT, USE SPACER
@ CROSS (TYP)

C4x4.5
GALV JST

L4x4x3
8" BR'G L4x4x3

8" BR'G

HELICAL PILE

HELICAL PILE

3
S4

1
S4

2
S4

HELICAL PILE

HANDRAIL

HANDRAILHANDRAIL

8'
-1

"

7'-0"

6
S4TYP

6
S4 TYP

4
S4

5
S4

12" MIN
EXT (TYP)

12" MIN
EXT (TYP)

A

A

VIEW 'A-A'

1"x51
2"

TREAD

1"x51
2"

RISER

11"

7" M
AX

1"
NOSING

1
4" BENT PL

HSS 5x2x14"
GALV STRINGER

NOTE:
2) STEP LIGHTS INSTALLED PER RISER
INCLUDING TOP RISER @ CONCRETE LANDING.

A
S3 TYPSTEP LIGHT

STEP LIGHTING DETAILA
S3 Scale:  1 1/2"=1'-0"

1"x51
2"

RISER

1"x51
2"

TREAD

STEP LIGHT (TYP)

CONCRETE LIGHTING DETAILB
S3 Scale:  1 1/2"=1'-0"

STEP LIGHT (TYP)

CONC LANDING

CLOSURE
BENT PL

C10x15.3

A
S3CONC LIGHT

1

1

NOTE:
ALL FABRICATION AND INSTALLATION SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ADA STANDARDS UNLESS STATED
ELSEWHERE. THIS NEEDS TO BE REVIEWED / VERIFIED
PRIOR TO SHOP DRAWING APPROVAL.

1

09/05/2024

Page 35 of 52



CLIENT:

PROJECT TITLE:

ISSUE
PHASE:

DATE
ISSUED:

REVISION

www.machinengineering.net

Co
py

rig
ht

 ©
20

24
 M

ac
hi

n 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g,
 IN

C

SHEET
NUMBER

PROJECT
NUMBER

SHEET TITLE:

PROJECT LOCATION:

DESCRIPTIONREV# DATE

DRAWN BY:

JLS

CHECK BY:

PJM

APPROVED BY:

PJM

CREATED:

09/26/2023

ON 11x17 SHEET SCALE: HALF
ON 22x34 SHEET SCALE: FULL (AS NOTED)

1235 E FRONT ST, Suite A
TRAVERSE CITY, MI PH 231.935.1530

CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY DDA
303 E STATE ST
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49684

PROPOSED
CITY OF TRAVERSE CITY

W FRONT ST
STAIRCASE

.

PROPOSED
STAIR, RAILING,

&
PILE DETAILS

23141
S4

GRAND TRAVERSE CO, MI

REV #1 02/08/2024

11/01/2023

CONSTRUCTION

A REVIEW - 30% DESIGN JLS092723

B REVIEW - 60% DESIGN JLS101223

C REVIEW - 75% DESIGN JLS101723

D REVIEW - 90% DESIGN JLS101823

0 ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION JLS110123

1 REVISED PER TC ENGINEERING DEPT REVIEW COMMENTS JLS020824

DETAIL1
S4 Scale:  1"=1'-0"

DETAIL2
S4 Scale:  1"=1'-0"

DETAIL4
S4 Scale:  1"=1'-0"

DETAIL5
S4 Scale:  1"=1'-0"

DETAIL3
S4 Scale:  1"=1'-0"

HSS 5x2
x1 4" S

TRINGER

±
46

1 8"

±
42

1 2"

4" MAX GAP (TYP)

4" MAX GAP (TYP)

GALV MESH
PANEL (TYP)

3x3 GALV NEWEL
POST (TYP)

2x8 RAILING
CAP (TYP)

6"x4"x1
4" GALV

PL (TYP)
GALV MOUNTING
ANGLE (TYP)

HSS 12x6x14" GALV

RAILING DETAIL6
S4 Scale:  1"=1'-0"

L4x4x3
8"

C10x15.3

MIN 2) 12" DIA GALV BOLTS
BETWEEN EA STRINGER

3
8" PL BOLTED
TO C-SHAPE

CONC LANDING

HSS 12x6x1
4"

STRINGER

HSS 12x6x1
4" BM

C4x4.5 JST HSS 12x6x1
4" BM

NOTES
1. ALL MANUFACTURED JOINTS TO 316" WELDS UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED.

2. ALL METAL FRAMING MEMBERS TO BE GALVANIZED.
CONTRACTOR MAY OFFER AN ALTERNATIVE COATING
SYSTEM TO PROVIDE A SIMILAR LEVEL OF PROTECTION.

3. WELD CAP PLATES ON ALL EXPOSED ENDS OF HSS
12x6x1

4" STRINGERS.

4. ALL BOLTS TO BE MINIMUM 12" DIAMETER HOT DIPPED
GALVANIZED.

5. ALL WOOD TO BE IPE.

6. HELICAL PILE NOTES:
A. EACH PILE SHALL BE INSTALLED TO ATTAIN AN

ULTIMATE LOAD OF 33.0 kips USING A FACTOR OF
SAFETY OF 3.0

B. PILE TESTING IS NOT REQUIRED USING A FACTOR OF
SAFETY OF 3.0

C. CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER A MINIMUM
OF 72 HOURS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION FOR
MONITORING INSTALLATION BY ENGINEER.

8"

HELICAL PILE

MIN 2) 12" GALV THROUGH
BOLTS BETWEEN EA STRINGER

3
8" PL BOLTED

TO HSS BM

HSS 5x2
x1 4" S

TRINGER

HSS 12x6x1
4"

STRINGER

HSS 12x6x14" BM

C4x4.5 JST

8"

HSS 8x6x14" BM

HELICAL PILE

HSS 5x2x 1
4" STRINGER

C4x4.5 JST

HSS 8x6x1
4" BM

HSS 8x6x14" BM

HELICAL PILE

3
8" PL BOLTED

TO HSS BM

MIN 2) 12" GALV THROUGH
BOLTS BETWEEN EA STRINGER

1
2" MIN STRINGER

BEARING PL

HSS 5x2x 1
4" STRINGER

HSS 12x6x1
4"

STRINGER

HSS 12x6x14"
STRINGER

HELICAL PILE

L8x4x1
2" SLV

42
1 2" 46

1 8"

30°

34
"-

38
"

23
4"

2x8 RAILING
CAP (TYP)

11
2" DIA GALV

HANDRAIL

VA
R

M
IN

 1
5 

FT
 B

EL
OW

 G
RA

DE

PILE CAP8
S4

MIN 1) BOLT THROUGH
SLEEVE & PILE SHAFT

TUBULAR SLEEVE

6x6x1
2" PL

2.875"x0.203" HELICAL PILE
LEAD W/ 8-10-12 FLIGHTS

2.875"x0.203" HELICAL
PILE EXTENSION

HELICAL PILE SECTION7
S4 Scale:  3/4"=1'-0"

PILE CAP DETAIL8
S4 Scale:  N.T.S.

ES
TI

M
AT

ED
 L

EN
GT

H 
20

 F
T 

±

11
2"

 M
IN

1
1

1

1

1

09/05/2024

Page 36 of 52



Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 
 
                   MEMORANDUM 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    Downtown Development Authority Board   
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, Executive Director 
 
Date:   October 14, 2024 
 
Re:    TIF-97 Budget Priorities   
 
 
Picking up from our conversation last month, the Board started to discuss a desire and 
need to determine what capital improvement projects we want to focus on and complete 
over the next three years – given that, if TIF-97 is not extended, it will formally expire in 
December of 2027, which means the DDA has three budget cycles remaining to fund 
and complete capital improvement projects.  
 
To that end, I asked Board members to send me suggestions for criteria on how we 
might collectively evaluate the potential of projects and priorities. A handful of board 
members provided me their suggestions and they are, mostly, in line with the 
considerations and evaluation criteria we discussed at the last meeting (see Discussion 
Background below).  
 
Given the complexity and nuance of many of the projects we have discussed, I am 
recommending that the DDA Board establish an Ad Hoc Committee to help facilitate 
and move this conversation forward. The Ad Hoc Committee would be charged with: 

1. Determining the criteria from which the DDA would evaluate the potential capital 
improvement projects. 

2. Using the criteria to narrow the list of potential projects to five or six. 
3. Bring the five or six projects back to the full DDA Board to then collectively discuss 

the criteria and narrow down and decide on our priority capital improvement 
projects.  

 
I’d like to get direction on these capital improvement project priorities by the end of the 
year, so I am asking that the Ad Hoc Committee meet at lest twice before the November 
15th DDA Board meeting (and possibly again after the meeting), so that we can 
collectively have an informed discussion as a full board in November and December.  
 
 

Page 37 of 52



Recommended Action  
That the DDA Board appoint _______________   to an Ad Hoc Committee to determine 
the criteria for how the DDA Board will collectively evaluate possible capital 
improvement projects and present to the full DDA Board a selection of possible capital 
improvement projects for their consideration and determination for the remaining three 
years of TIF-97.  
 
I have provided a background of the discussion below to help frame the next steps and 
collective discussion of the DDA Board.   
 
Discussion Background  
The DDA Board approved the Moving Downtown Forward TIF Plan in August and it has 
been sent on to the City Commission for discussion and consideration for approval 
(after a public hearing) at a date yet to be determined, but after the November election.  
At this time, we do not know the outcome of that potential vote. In addition, there are 
two voter referendums that address the future of TIF on the November ballot, which if 
approved, would require an affirmative vote of the citizens of Traverse City to extend 
and/or amend the TIF-97 Plan (i.e., Moving Downtown Forward TIF Plan).  
 
If TIF-97 is not extended, it will formally expire in December of 2027, which means  
the DDA has three budget years remaining to fund and complete capital improvement 
projects. Although I remain optimistic about the approval and extension of the Moving 
Downtown Forward TIF Plan, I think it is prudent to consider scenarios in which TIF-97 
is not extended. To that end, I believe it is in the best interest of the DDA to start a 
conversation about what capital improvement projects we want to focus on and 
complete over the next three years.  
 
To reiterate, this is not to say the DDA is going to stop looking forward, beyond 
December of 2027. The DDA will continue to inform the community about the TIF tool, 
serve as an advocate and champion for the extension of TIF and help facilitate the 
approval of the Moving Downtown Forward TIF Plan. This conversation is only intended 
to help the DDA Board establish direction and priorities for the next three years, should 
TIF-97 not be extended. Again, our meeting on Friday is only meant to begin this 
conversation.  
 
How Much Money Is Available? 
One of the first questions we need to know understand is how much money does the 
DDA have available over the remaining three budget cycles for capital improvements 
projects. I am working with our team from Rehmann to develop a working “TIF Revenue 
and Expense Projection Sheet” that estimates the revenue and expenditures of TIF-97 
for the next three years. The numbers listed in the preliminary revenue and expense 
projection sheet reflect a few assumptions – mainly that the expenses for Professional 
Services (including Debt Service on the Hardy Parking Structure, General Expenses 
and Repairs and Maintenance) remains fairly consistent. 
 

Page 38 of 52



Therefore, the dollars remaining for Capital Improvement Projects for each future fiscal 
year is estimated to be: 
Fiscal Year 2025 – 2026: $1,624,680 
Fiscal Year 2026 – 2027: $1,715,190 
Fiscal Year 2027 – 2028: $1,178,920 
 
The total dollars remaining for capital improvements, coupled with our estimated End of 
Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Fund Balance of $4,798,515, means that the DDA has an 
estimated total of $9,317,305 to spend on Capital Improvement projects over the next 
three years. I will continue to work with the team from Rehmann to refine the projection 
sheet, but it does provide a starting point. 
 
What Capital Infrastructure Projects Do We Want to Spend the Money On?     
This question is hard to answer because there are a number of considerations and 
variables at play, including: 

• Are there other infrastructure projects the city has planned that will require TIF funding? 
• Are there city infrastructure projects that we could dovetail on with our own project? 
• What projects do we already have in the works? 
• What projects does the community and City Commission support?   
• What projects can the DDA realistically get completed by 2027? 
• What project(s) align with the Moving Downtown Forward Guiding Principles? 
• What projects have the highest ROI? 

 
Based on several years of DDA Board conversations and discussions regarding capital 
infrastructure projects, including community discussion from the Moving Downtown 
Forward planning process, the DDA have identified several capital infrastructure 
projects of interest: 
 
Garland Street Improvements  Public Alley Improvements Farmers Market Shed 
Rotary Square Board/Ottaway Riverwalk City Opera House 
Bridge Improvements  Bayfront Improvements  Heated Sidewalks 
East Front Street  Downtown Cameras Stormwater  
Streetscaping Improvements Housing (west end) Mobility Improvements  
Composting  Two-Way Streets TART Trail Extension  
General Repair West Front Staircase Lot G 
East Front Gateway  
 
Based on the estimated amount of money we believe we have left in TIF-97, the 
number of budget cycles we have left, and the considerations mentioned above, I 
believe the following projects could use additional discussion and exploration for 
potential focus of the DDA. Given the amount of money available, it’s likely that one or 
two (or maybe three) projects is possible. We also need to consider if the DDA should 
continue to budget dollars for infrastructure projects that it has traditional supported, like 
streetscaping when new development occurs. Again, I believe all of the projects listed 
above are worth pursuing should TIF-97 be extended – this following list is just a 
starting point for discussion. 

Page 39 of 52



 
Rotary Square       Cost: Unknown 
We are about to kick off the conceptual and schematic design process for this project 
and could implement “phase one” improvements within the next three years. Additional 
phases of improvements to Rotary Square could be implemented should TIF-97 be 
extended.  
 
Farmers Market Shed      Cost: Unknown 
In 2019, the DDA worked with Beckett and Reader to develop schematic designs for a 
permanent shed at the Farmers Market. The city has identified plans to reconstruct and 
reconfigure Lot B in the near future, which would provide the DDA an opportunity to 
implement the permanent farmers market shed at the same time. The DDA would need 
to work with Beckett and Reader to revisit and revise the schematic design to adhere to 
the reconfigured Lot B.  
 
Boardman/Ottaway Riverwalk      Cost: Est. $5 million 
Project “One-A”: J-Smith Walkway, a new pedestrian bridge with abutment 
improvements on both sides of the river.   
As noted in the Executive Director report, the DDA and MEDC reached a mutual 
understanding that the DDA would likely be unable to fulfill the obligations of the  
$1 million PAR Grant and have since terminated the grant agreement. We anticipate 
additional grant dollars (with awards of $1million) from MEDC for placemaking projects 
will become available later this year with more flexible time constraints.    
 
We have also budgeted $1,000,000 in this fiscal year for engineering/schematic 
services and I have been working with INFORM Studio to secure a cost/proposal to 
complete this task.     
 
Two-Way Circulation      Cost: Unknown 
As noted earlier in this meeting packet, we have nearly completed the two-year pilot 
project and will need to collectively decide how to proceed with the pilot project. We 
have budgeted $500,000 in this fiscal year for additional modifications to the street 
network, as needed. Additional modifications for a permanent change in the future 
(whether it remains a two-way street or reverts back to a one-way street) will require 
additional TIF funding.  
 
Bayfront TART Trail Improvements     Cost: $200,000 
We have budgeted $200,000 in this fiscal year for trail improvements/expansion along 
portions of the Bayfront Trail. Additional improvements/expansion through the TIF 
District will require additional funding, in collaboration with the City and TART. Funding 
could also be allocated to other non-motorized infrastructure in the downtown district, 
should we develop and determine a specific project(s).    
 
Stormwater Infrastructure      Cost: Unknown 
Stormwater infrastructure has been identified as an infrastructure priority by both the 
DDA Board and City Commission. In fact, after additional budget discussions with the 

Page 40 of 52



City Commission in June, the DDA included $100,000 in the 2024-2025 budget to 
address this infrastructure priority. At this time, we do not have a specific stormwater 
project ready for implementation (I have been working with city staff to identify potential 
projects). Therefore, additional study and development of a project(s) would need to be 
facilitated, in partnership with city staff.  
 
East Front Street/Gateway      Cost: Est. $5 Million 
In 2021, we had a preliminary budget of just under $5 million to reconstruct East Front 
Street (between Boardman Ave. and Grandview Parkway). Once the reconstruction of 
the new Grandview Parkway and East Front Street intersection is completed later this 
fall, I believe it will spark renewed interest in completing streetscaping along this 
gateway stretch of Front Street. This section of Front Street is one of the last remaining 
downtown streets to incorporate any streetscaping elements.     
 
Ambassador Program       Cost: Unkown 
The day-to-day maintenance of the downtown, especially in the summer, is a challenge 
for the current DDA staff. Fortunately, we have been able to contract with YouthWorks 
to provide supplemental maintenance of downtown. While that relationship has proven 
to be successful, I believe it is in the best interest of Downtown if we take it up to 
another level and create a full-time, year-round downtown ambassador program. 
Funding for this kind of program could come from “serves” side of the budget, but I 
believe it is an important next step for downtown.    
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  

Page 41 of 52



 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 

           Memorandum 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    DDA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director  
   
Date:   October 13, 2024  
 
Subject:  Downtown Improvements - J-Smith Walkway  
 
 
Earlier this month, I met with the Parks and Recreation Superintendent to discuss the 
landscaping needs in the J-Smith Walkway. As you might be aware, there is a 
smattering of plants on either side of the walkway, but for the most part, the planting 
beds are overgrown with weeds and/or empty. Based on that conversation, the 
Superintendent reached out to Gosling Czubak to secure a quote for landscape design. 
The intent of the design would be to plant a variety of flowering plants and native 
shrubs, with differing heights of landscape to create nice vertical elements and invite 
people through the space year-round. One positive element is that there is drip irrigation 
already in place in the walkway.  
 
Gosling Czubak has provided a proposed contract to develop a landscape planting plan 
for $6,500. I am asking the DDA Board to consider covering the cost for the landscape 
planting plan so that we might be able to implement a landscape design (in partnership 
with the city) in the spring. As you recall, the DDA Board allocated $100,000 for 
“infrastructure repair” in the 2024/2025 budget – I believe this landscape planting plan 
falls within that category.    
 
Recommended Motion  
That the DDA Board approves to enter into an agreement with Gosling Czubak for a 
landscape planting plan for the J-Smith Walkeay and that $6,500 from TIF-97 be 
allocated for the landscape planting plan, subject to approval as to its from and 
substance by DDA Executive Director and DDA Attorney. 
 
 
     

Page 42 of 52



 
 

Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 

           Memorandum 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    DDA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director  
   
Date:   October 13, 2024  
 
Subject:  Executive Director Report  
 
 
Below is an overview of projects and initiatives that the DDA is working on. 
 
Bayfront TART Trail Expansion & Extension 
Work on the new section of the expanded TART Bayfront 
Trail, from Murchie Bridge to Clinch Park and Division to 
Hall Street is nearly complete. As a reminder, the DDA 
committed $200,000 toward this project - matching funds 
from the City, TART and a grant from the MEDC. We are 
currently working the project partners to hold a ribbon-
cutting ceremony for the trail next month.  
 
Hannah Park Overlook  
The city is working to secure the final signatures with the builder so this project can 
begin. Given the time of year, the majority of this project will likely be completed in the 
spring. As a reminder, the DDA committed $105,000 from Old Town TIF toward this 
project – matching similar funding amounts from the city.  
 
Moving Downtown Forward TIF  
As you might have heard at the October 7th City Commission meeting, the City 
Commission will not be taking any action on the Moving Downtown Forward TIF Plan 
until after the November 2024 election. Mayor Shamroe did provide a brief overview of 
the approval process for the TIF Plan (if the amendments pertaining to TIF were not on 
the ballot): 
 

1. Introduction of TIF Plan to the City Commission   
2. Set a public hearing on the TIF Plan for 30 days after the date  
3. Bring the TIF Plan back for a public hearing  
4. City Commission votes on TIF Plan  
5. Plan is either adopted or fails. If the Commission votes in the affirmative, a window 

to challenge is provided by legislation.  

Page 43 of 52



 
 

 
Parking Services  
Parking Services has completed their transition to the city. I’d like to give a huge thank 
you to Nicole VanNess and the entire Parking Services staff (past and present) for their 
many years of dedication and commitment to the DDA.  
 
DDA Administration Items  
The Governance Committee met on September 30th to discuss a number of 
administrative items that will ultimately be coming back to the full DDA Board later this 
fall – including:  
 

A revised DDA Employee Handbook (and its associated policies) to reflect a smaller 
scope (now that parking services has moved to the city) of wage and salary policies 
and address policies that reflect a post-pandemic and post Parking Services office 
environment.   
 
Short and long-term priorities and benchmarks for the Executive Director position (for 
this year) that will assist the DDA Board in its annual evaluation of the Executive 
Director next June.    
 

Rotary Square  
Work has begun with Progressive AE on the conceptual design for Rotary Square.  
Representatives from Progressive will be at our November meeting to discuss the 
project timeline and review the public engagement strategy.  
 
Two-Way Pilot 
I am working city staff to bring forward our recommendation for another year of the pilot-
project to the City Commission for discussion and consideration in November.    
 
Garland Banners 
I am working with Britten Banner to replace the “Warehouse District” banners along 
Garland Street, as most of the are faded and/or worn-out.   
   
 
 
     

Page 44 of 52



  

 
 

 
 

 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
 harry@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 

           Memorandum 
__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
To:    Downtown Development Authority Board of Directors   
 
From:  Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director & Todd McMillen, DDA Board 

Member  
     
Memo Date:  October 14, 2024 
 
Subject: Arts Commission Update 
 
 
Rotating Art Exhibit    
There is a desire from the Arts Commission to place the last remaining statue from the 
Spirit of the Forest Rotating Art Exhibit downtown. I am working with the Artist and the 
Parks and Recreation Superintendent to determine if it can be located in the J-Smith 
Walkway.   
 
Grant Award  
I am pleased to note that the MACC has awarded the DDA (on behalf of the Arts 
Commission) $12,000 toward the Mural Festival. A big thank you to Commissioner Early 
for helping assemble the submission.  
 
Mazinaadin Exhibit 
The replacement panel for the Mazinaadin exhibit is currently in production with Image-
360.  
 
Mural Ribbon Cutting   
The Arts Commission held a ribbon cutting for the 
mural, by artist Catherine Corden, on the restroom 
building at Bryant Park is now complete.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45 of 52



                                         Downtown Development Authority 
303 E. State Street 

Traverse City, MI 49684 
 sara@downtowntc.com 

      231-922-2050 
 

Memorandum 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
To:    Harry Burkholder, DDA Executive Director  

Downtown Development Authority Board of Directors   
    

From:    Sara Klebba, DDA Director of Events & Engagement  
 
Date:   Oct 14, 2024 
 
Subject:  DTCA Director of Events & Engagement Update 
 
Oct 18-31: Haunts & Harvest Window Walk 
Oct 26: Halloween Walk 
Nov 9: Shop Your Community Day 
Nov 23: Annual Tree Lighting with Santa’s Arrival & Light Parade 
Nov 29&30: Black Friday & Small Business Saturday 
Dec 5: Ladies’ Night 
Dec 12: Men’s Night 
 
Haunts & Harvest Window Walk  

• 34 merchants have signed up for this first-year event. 
• Storefronts/windows are being decorated in fall harvest or spooky season themes to 

attract more foot traffic and engage customers with storefronts. 
• Contest Categories – Business displays voted on by visitors/customers throughout the 

two weeks: 
o Most Creative 
o Best Overall 
o Judge’s Choice: A select group from the DTCA board 
o Prizes from Lilies of the Alley and Cherry Republic 

• 2025: Consider opening up windows to kids/groups for painting/decorating. (Similar to 
other metropolitan downtown events.) 

 
Downtown Halloween Walk  

• A merchant overview email was sent 10/10. Through communications and signage, 
we’re encouraging a single flow of traffic (counter-clockwise facing west on Front St.). 

• 14 volunteers have signed up to be crossing guards. 
 

Page 46 of 52



Shop Your Community Day 
• 30 nonprofit organizations have been designated/blindly chosen as recipients of 15% of 

sales on Sat., Nov. 9. 32 merchants (and counting) have signed up to donate that 
portion of their sales. 

 
Light Parade & Tree Lighting with Santa 

• Santa & Tree Lighting 
o Santa is locked in and happy to accept the Key to the City and light the tree. 
o We are working on Santa’s House, including returning it to City Center Plaza by 

Towne Plaza. Volunteers are lining up to be our helpful elves. 
• Light Parade 

o The DDA is partnering with National Cherry Festival who will lead on parade 
route, staging and de-staging. DDA is overseeing all entries, marketing, admin, 
comms, volunteer recruitment, safety, etc. 

o As of 10/14/24, 34 entries have been approved out of 50 total. Deadline to apply 
is Nov 1, or until we are at capacity. 

o We are short on volunteers! We are looking for Parade volunteers for route 
monitoring, staging, and de-staging. High school students are really stepping up! 

• Sponsorships 
o Though we have a few confirmed sponsorships (Cherry Republic, The Little 

Fleet, and MSU FCU), we need more sponsors to help sustain these holiday 
(and all!) events.  

 
Traverse City Restaurant Week (Feb 23-Mar 1, 2025) 

• Dates have been identified for the annual TCRW: Feb 23-Mar 1. Restaurants in Grand 
Traverse County will be invited to participate in the week featuring prix fixe meals at $25, 
$35, and $45 per person. 

• The DDA, on behalf of the DTCA, is connecting with TC Tourism to determine if we’ll be 
presenting the passport option again in 2025. 

 
TC Comedy Fest 

• Though the Downtown Traverse City Association remains a proud supporter of the 
Traverse City Comedy Fest, and Traverse City Tourism will be the presenting sponsor 
for the 2025 festival, SamRose Entertainment assumes sole production of the event.  

• New dates were announced on Oct. 14: April 10-12. Marc Maron is headlining the 
festival, hosted at eight venues. 

 

Page 47 of 52



 

Staff Report 

 

TO: Elizabeth Vogel, City Manager 
COPY: Deborah Allen, Assistant City Manager; Heidi Scheppe, City 

Treasurer/Finance Director 
FROM: Nicole VanNess, Transportation Mobility Director 
MEMO DATE: September 30, 2024 
SUBJECT: Notice of Parking Permit Rate Increases Effective 1/1/2025 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
On October 1, 2024, we will publish our parking permit rate increases that will go into effect on 
January 1, 2025. Permit rates will be effective through June 30, 2026. This will allow us to align 
future increases with the budget process and effective dates with the start of the new fiscal year.  
  
The upcoming budget process will consider the 2027/28 phase 2 parking structure restoration 
repairs that are projected to be $1.25 million, and a deeper dive into parking revenues is needed 
to ensure each structure can be self-sustaining for annual and future repairs and maintenance. 
The increase for surface permits is due to the high demand for surface spaces. Demand-based 
pricing practices support increasing rates to decrease demand reflected in the oversell ratio. 
  
 January 1, 2025* 
Surface  
Includes Old Town Structure for 
parking lot capacity overflow 

Month $48 

Annual $576  
Structures Hardy & Old 
Town Month $55 

Annual $660  
Structures Old Town Month $35 
Annual $420  
Structures Hardy & Old 
Town After-hours  
Includes all day access Sat-Sun, 
M-F 12 AM-7 AM, M-F 3 PM-12 
AM 

Month $37.50 

  $450  

Page 48 of 52



These rate increases will not need to go to the City Commission for approval. City Commission 
approved a Rate Ceiling table for all parking rates on October 5, 2020. The rates are within the 
approved and adopted rate ceiling. 
  
Supporting Information 
  
The table below outlines the historical information on permit rates and permit type that have 
been offered since 2006. As a reminder, in 2021 we discontinued the “buy in bulk” discounts as 
a quick win Transportation Demand Management objective. 
  
  2006 2010 2011 2014 2015 2018 2021 2023 
Surface Month $35 $35 $40 $45 $44 $36 $38 $38 
Quarter $85 $85 $90 $95 $114 $108    
Annual $290 $290 $320 $345 $390 $432 $456 $456  
Structures 
Hardy, 
Old 
Town, & 
Surface 

Month $45 $50 $60 $65 $55 $48   

Quarter $100 $105 $120 $130 $146 $144    
Annual $360 $370 $405 $425 $425 $520    
Structures 
Hardy & 
Old 
Town 

Month   $50 $50 

Annual $600 $600        
Structure 
Old 
Town 

Month   $30 

Annual $360         
Parking Permits Sold 

 197 Surface permit parking spaces (lots T & P) as of 2/1/2023 
 Surface permit waitlist terminated as of 2/1/2023 
 Old Town only permit available as of 4/2023 
 Auto Parking Fund has increased expenses for property taxes on the properties in the 100 

blk of W State 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024 (as of 
9/16/2024) 

Surface 537 511 506 410 386 
Structures 
Hardy & Old 
Town 

1,117 615 659 225 229 

Structures   212 193 

Page 49 of 52



Old Town 
 

Page 50 of 52



 
 

DTCA Board of Directors Meeting  
August 8, 2024 
8:30 –10:00 am 
DDA Office Conference Room 
  
MEETING MINUTES 
 
 
Meeting called to order at 8:40am by President Dawn Gildersleeve. 
 
Roll Call          
Present: Dawn Gildersleeve, Amanda Walton, Karen Roofe, Libby Hogan 
Not present: Gary Jonas, Jeff Joubran, Sebastian Garbsch 
 
Approval of the Consent Agenda as presented 
Motion by Amanda Walton, seconded by Dawn Gildersleeve. 
Approved unanimously. 
 
Approval of July Meeting Minutes as presented 
Motion by Karen Roofe, seconded by Amanda Walton. 
Approved unanimously. 

 
Financials & Legal updates            
No update: Harry Burkholder out/financials unavailable (to email upon his return) 
 
NEW BUSINESS          8:40am 

 
A. DTCA District – Nobo Mrkt Ask Re: DTCA Boundaries 

a. Ask Jerry/City to create new district map with DDA overlay. 
b. To create a definition of DTCA membership/boundaries. Need criteria/knock-out 

questions. Include this discussion in Membership Committee meeting. 
c. Need to focus on improving outreach with current DTCA districts. Add to by-laws for 

next year. 
 

B. DTCA Member Feedback from eelo re Verts 
a. Merchant Summer Survey sent with 9/6 deadline. 

 
C. Happy Apple Day overview  

a. Didn’t execute in 2023. Cancel event.  
b. Replace with Haunts & Harvest Window Walk display competition, Oct 19-31. 

 
D. Toast to Downtown Theming 

a. Board agreed that it’s time to reinvent this event. Make it more casual, more fun, 
especially as the events landscape continues to evolve. 

 
E. Dates for TC Restaurant Week 2025 

a. 2/23-3/1 
b. To discuss boundaries. 

Page 51 of 52



 
 
OLD BUSINESS              

A. Director of Events & Engagement Memo: Sara Klebba 
a. Recap: Aug 2 Street Sale & FNL 

i. Harbor Days and NWMI Fair Family Day are always conflicts 
b. TC Comedy Fest agreement 
c. Downtown Art Fair  
d. DT Employee Summer Send-Off update/volunteers needed 
e. Membership Committee: Set up meeting 
f. Ragnar Relay  

 
B. Gift Certificates  

a. Eliminate $5’s/$10’s; Liz P. to have them shredded.  
b. DO NOT DONATE ANY OF THEM.  
c. Motion by Karen Roofe, seconded by Amanda Walton. All approved. 

 
C. DTCA By-laws Discussion and Approval: for September meeting. 

 
D. Discount Card Policy – Remote vs. downtown employee 

a. Any employee can use them but keep remote cards for employees in DT offices to 
use when here.  

b. Add discount card policy to Member Committee agenda. 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS 
Adjourn           9:50am  

Page 52 of 52


	Agenda
	5. A. September 20, 2024 DDA Board Meeting Minutes - PDF
	5. B. DDA, Old Town TIF, TIF-97 Financial Report and Dashboard - PDF
	OT TIF Trial Balance - Sept 24
	TIF97 Trial Balance - Sept 24
	DDA_Dashboard - Sept 24
	OT_TIF Dashboard - Sept 24
	TIF97_Dashboard - Sept 24 (1)

	5. C. September 30, 2024 Governance Committee Meeting Minutes - PDF
	8. A. Downtown Resturant Composting Program Memo )Burkholder) - PDF
	8. B. West Front Street Bridge Staircase Memo (Burkholder) - PDF
	8. B. Staircase Plan Set - PDF
	23141_ENG_Rev1-C2

	9. A. TIF-97 Budget Priorities Memo (Burkholder) - PDF
	9. B. Downtown Improvements - J-Smith Walkway Memo (Burkholder) - PDF
	10. A. Executive Director Report Memo (Burkholder) - PDF
	11. A. Art Commission Report Memo (McMillen) - PDF
	12. A. Director of Events and Engagement Report (Klebba) - PDF
	13. A. Notice of Parking Permit Rate Increases (VanNess) - PDF
	13. B. August 8, 2024 DTCA Meeting Minutes - PDF

		2024-09-05T08:13:46-0400
	Patrick Machin


		2024-09-05T08:13:50-0400
	Patrick Machin


		2024-09-05T08:13:51-0400
	Patrick Machin


		2024-09-05T08:13:52-0400
	Patrick Machin


		2024-09-05T08:13:52-0400
	Patrick Machin


		2024-09-05T08:13:54-0400
	Patrick Machin


		2024-09-05T08:13:55-0400
	Patrick Machin


		2024-09-05T08:13:57-0400
	Patrick Machin


		2024-09-05T08:13:58-0400
	Patrick Machin


		2024-09-05T08:13:59-0400
	Patrick Machin




